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10. LF+ 27
*o 7
2024 20233
(R i ~) Al i ~)
DEES ok
17 1p 4% 16, 901 19, 683
B3 27 (zA) 032 -
X ( 400) -
AP FEE L A - ( 2,1782)
1272 31 p 4%F 17,033 16, 901
RV kI A S &
17 1p &3¢ 5, 738 8, 020
2P FE #u,% SAR-BER L - ( 2, 282)
122 31p &% 5, 138 5, 138
ARG e 11, 295 11,163
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EAUECR IS

2024 2023
308 L A R IR % %
Beng Hui Marine Electrical Pte. Ltd. FREAPFTIASE 25T M 100 100
X ("BHM" ) (Fr4c i) 2. A S8 PR G
SOPEX Innovations Pte. Ltd.* (FF#4c3t) B3iF X & 22 F fie 2 2 3+ 3 100 100
Sea Forrest Technologies Pte. Ltd. FORRE - 80
# ("SFT")(F4c ) (*it3EA)
Sea Forrest Technologies (S) Pte. Ltd. "% F 80 -
Kk “SFTS” )(Fr4e s ) (it 3zA)
Genesis Environtech Pte. Ltd. W2 A HR* 2 PR - 100
@ ( “GEN” )(#73ct)
Omnisense Systems Private Limited Eg o fldfes b %I%? » B ¥4 5.7 75.7
A (TOMS" ) (AT 4 ) F2HBRE
ONE BHG Pte. Ltd.@("ONE BHG")(F74c3t) %2 A Haa* 2 F > i hf Lz - 100
Bk Bz 1 ARIR R MR IRGE
Athena International Holdings Pte.Ltd. Wi 2 & 4 &R 85 85
X ("ATH" ) (F74e i)
BOS Offshore & Marine Pte. Ltd. FenBdFZ2THR2 pMIREZE AR 100 100
X ("BOS") (#74csb)
Blue Sky Ecotech Ltd. @("BSE") (5 #) Wtz @i #Hxa*2HE > L hifLz - 100
Bow ok Mz 1R A R ORAE
SFTS# 3 2 3 2 @ ("ixd)
Sea Forrest Power Solutions Pte. Ltd. BREIRE S kA2 1 ARRFEE R 80 -
%k ("SFP") ($74c #) FRA® > B ER B R fe it 2 g
Sea Forrest Engineering Pte. Ltd. AR E IR A g2 EaEA 80 -
¥k ("SFE" ) (F74c st )
SFTH# 4 2.+ 2 2 (3xh)
Sea Forrest Power Solutions Pte. Ltd. AR TRE S k2 L ARRGEE R - 80
¥k ("SFP") (#74c#t) PRA%: o A 3B R 22 F e i 2 o
Sea Forrest Engineering Pte. Ltd. LR LSRR i S ST 1 A - 80
xk ("SFE")(#74c4t)
AlfE § 25 2 7
Athena Dynamics Pte. Ltd. * (F74c#) HEITEF A 53342 % 85 85
SASA APAC Pte. Ltd. * (F74c ) & G 2 3R PRI 85 85
OMS$ 4 23 2 7
Omnisense Systms USA, Inc N (£ K®) BAER K 28 R PRI 75.7 5.7

* d Baker Tilly TFW LLP %% -

N W & Hp4iR4E 4 2 P > d Baker Tilly TFW LLP & #% -

k% o Garanzia LLP &+ -

@ ~# & GEN - ONE BHG © 34 2 BSE ¢ j& == o

# 2025 # 27 20 p o o
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10,255 27 (&)
a)F 2w wm(E)

WA AR R FIREBRE 23] 0 Ao 7B 17 Sea Forrest Technologies (S)
Pte Ltd ( “SFTS” ) z #=+14 » SFTS 5 Sea Forrest Technologies Pte
Ltd ( “SFT” ) 2 FF 413 7h 2 h2 P o 28 £ b iz SFTS 27— %
grvE- Rk o T AEG DR o fRPp R IEA 0 SFT Rry TAZ £ (@
#4535 Sea Forrest Engineering Pte Ltd ( “SFE” ) 2 Sea Forrest
Power Solutions Pte Ltd ( “SFP” ) z %+4g) E#cig:E~ SFTS- iT5 %
% > SFTS w SFT 4 i 500, 009 *% 4 38 "% » 4§ {4 SFT & i » /% 2L 3R £ 9% 4]
U0 R g 2 2IVSFTS i g 227 2 SFIS2Z €% » B >t i
B s 80%% 20% e A= E PR AFEMIS kIR g E < P
AT FLT XL AT I RRFTIOE 22034 A 2 5%
FEFREFRL HWASPZ I 2P A NLEIRZAPEIF-F 0 L
AEBEFR APREE Sond 2 IR

£
FogH

EERIFRATG » TAF P2 A FI BRI AR T B E A

2024 2023
+ @ L H A B Y EHT AR % %
Omnisense Systems Prlvate Limited seion 943 243

R 28 "OMSE®T )

I 2P LMBFRASNT S AL HB TR B H RS AP

OMS &
2024 2023
Grac %) (Grac % E )
AT A 2,624 2,465
it F A 8,225 9,008
sinds b § ( 35) ( 74)
Ty ( 18,292) ( 15,319)
%4 ( 7,478) ( 3,920)
FRSARIES L] G ( 1,817 ( 95D
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D)EF &% iz 2+ 2P 2 TR & (H)

(w

OMS & ®
2024 2023
(3r4c B ) (BT B 2)
T » 4,009 3, 389
His % # ( 8,101) ( 7,136)
ERTE ( 4,092) ( 3, 747)
“+ 8 ffl oIT ol
A REI R LA £t ( 3,575) ( 3,373)
BRI ZH 4 ( 868) ( 818)
REFEREE
2024 2023
(%’—"T% ﬂi =+ m) (%’ E2 ij; F m)
CE TS R ( 2,127) 798
FFEBRLE ( 376) ( 1,152)
E —ééva%,,. F 2,629 ( 262)
BEZHYERE RN (D 126 ( 616)
ILEFWEFTLEE
ADERFEFTEFEZAM T
AL Ao 7
2024 2023 2024 2023
(Groc B 2) (Froe % 2) G B a) B iFa)

Dream Marine Ship Spare
Parts Trading LLC (DMS)

(B0, frd am s X 2 R) 3, 400 2,884 949

$865, 00002023 * $865, 000) % » & W 425 &
tE2ZF

)T EEF

B

)
She
-4

&~
it

3
=0

2 4

EFEEL LA 2024
( ER X %

2023
%

Dream Marine Ship

Spare Parts Trading 1
LLC # (B3 frf B g *
< 2 F)(DMS)

34
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ILEFTHEFEFGD

OF AL ETEELTH ()

#+d BLS Lad Chartered Accountants LLC # +% °
WA 2P 2 DSz &k A2 743 DS %
AN PHDUS 2 P2 KT iR E RGBT LA 0 v Ty
Fl2o 83 - R AW E o

SR IT d B

> 34%° e ¥ 27| DMS T0%z2- % 1 -

i

FIPFE L PR BIMERRTI 223N F > AT 2 AU B2 2P LY
TEHETRUROP L EFT AL e Tl LRRBEARE ET
GEFLEGRBE AR LML Y o

DRBEEX LT EEAAMMBRTA(EMBRLGAE A FREREE 2 HEFAHE)

MR E DAY S H AR LR T BT

DMS
2024 2023
Grocg B i =) (Ao ~)
HErHFN
YT 4, 263 3, 784
fiuts 1 & 1,224 620
B meqf 58 ( 104)
FEJIE R 1, 282 016
FE 8T E R 381 378
PitfeE £ 5T AT
DMS
2024 2023
(3rhe Bt 2) (374c i Heis )
T 18 32
FAFFRARAR -
FETS (3 123 123
it F A b, 087 4,449
i ( 1,291) ( 1,688)
ETA 3,919 2, 884
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1LLFZFWwEF & ¥
DREFELEAEFTLEEAAMUABRTA(EMBF L AL AEREBEL 2V bEFAE)
R GRAI E B AR Y R TR T T ()
THFALFe ZzTAAEP
DMS
2024 2023
Graed 6 A) G B e =)
BEZHFHRE 374 471
ah 2,558 2,433
R <t 2 1, 840 1,184
6 Rl 315 622
)R HMABETHAE L EEMBEELY HEFT EERERINL &34
DMS
2024 2023
(3ot i ir 2) (34 i iF )
EFL¥ETA 3, 919 2, 884
. lﬁ)fﬁ%ﬁv” kg
2ZEFA 2,535 2,019
v g?\ﬁ_;'—_ 865 865
#,t;ﬁ?rhg\i u% iz 3,400 2, 884
12. B £ F KT
a);}}tﬁﬁrﬁg%ﬁ:#ﬁ AT
aL) o E
2024 2023 2024 2023
WG Grieg i ~) Frac B E2) Gricd R ~) GraBvx)
GL Lighting Holding Pte
Ltd("GLH" )2 3 2@ (12T
A'GLHE ®m") - - - -
BOS Marine Offshore
Engineering Corporation
("BOSMEC" ) 20 - - -
20 - - -
KT GLH B BB R A4 2 16§ e
& E o E
2024 2023 2024 2023
(;1—4\3 H: m) (ﬁ’TﬁZ |—F ;._,) (%%4\7& F m) ({T"C ]—F ;u)
R A
Wi £ T A LI 9, 663 9, 663 14, 748 14, 748
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12. Mo & ¥R F(H)
b)T F BB & E 2 4P
LA NS

2024 2023

ME S 2 LT BT AEEFRP % %
GL Lighting Holding Pte e
Ltd(u GLHH) X (%’?‘%Zii) i“ F' 'ﬁig" 43 43
BOS Marine Offshore Engineering FEI AR FHEE K ‘LPRzZ» ’ff'ﬂ 35 35
Corporation("BOSMEC") *¥% (p &) F23agaFeflv 21

GLHg 4 2+ 29
General Luminaire (Shanghai)
7 2 il 4

Co., Ltd. ("SGL") %k (¥ £4 3% ‘:fpﬁ SRLEDEPAEE g 13
fe@) i
General Luminaire (Kunshan) Co., 33"~ #i$ % % # LEDPE P A4p B i 13 13
Ltd. CKGL") %% (¥ £4 32 4e®) £ 2 %4
Arco Illumination Pte Ltd s ot
(37 4e 1) FFRPADM A SR s 43 43
General Luminaire Co., Ltd. 5 ¢ LEDAEM 4o 2 5 % & 13 13

(s #)
KGLiF3 23 2@

Kunshan Yonglong Precision
Optical Industrial Co., Ltd B ¢ LEDPEF Ap M B2 % K & 43 43
1K (¢ EA R L AeR)
* ¢ Baker Tilly TFW LLP & +% -
% d 4 Baker Tilly TFW LLP Bp s+ & 4% -
kkk EF AP

PRI E R RREEF RN E EMAIEL Y o

Cfd EAA LRI EF AL G TP FIRP F RV R 2GR
) % GLH $ 2 BOSMEC 4 b 45 730 (3 AI34F & i A 0 B 4R 4E 5 2 0 plie i@
AEOERE LRI BT LRFRG G EF ARG

GLE % ® BOSMEC
2024 2023 2024 2023

(% 4 }i i ;u) (%ﬁ--égiif’;} * ;u) (%ﬁ*%gﬁﬂ;}? “* ;\.,) ( T4 |4 m)
FERTD
for 12, 920 16, 883 9,008 8,218
TAIC EDETE: ( 691) 323 766 201
RS R ( 67) ( 296) - -
FEERLOTE R ( 758) 21 766 201
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12. M3 & ¥R F(H)
d)ﬁ-ngLH # ® % BOSMEC #BF&,‘?Eﬁﬁ»‘ T(HpAFRERE 4 2 A S A B EEREE A e
AEONE DS IR L MY L RFEG B EF T ()

GLH $ ® BOSMEC
2024 2023 2024 2023

(ol B R) (BB BUL) Gl Bua) (g ua)
FELFRAF
AnET A 12, 060 12, 660 107 96
kT A 6, 365 6, 362 2,182 2,331
LT ( 2,908) ( 2,926) ( 640) ( 991)
s ol ( 17,402) ( 17,370) ( 1,355) ( 1,939)
£(f )54 ( 1,885) ( 1,274) 294 ( 503)
i pifiw S - - 20 :
=) SRR 9, 663 9, 663 - -
BRI A ( 9,663) ( 9,663) - -
PR &3 - - 20 -

2024 # R R BUAGRIN B DI 2 JLE BT 5 AT RS 248, 000 (2023
&5 AT4e s %8 70,000 2 1 F ) > % FBOSMEC ¥+ 123 & B % A AR R34
4 ABBHEE L AREZ Bl ABEp SR R R E e
TR R AT AR A A DR ¢ E Bl R KT E #2202 &
12 0 31 p o A B BARADIFEL G5 ATRRS 0 (2023 # 5 s RS
248,000) -

ﬂl‘\lr

13. vhat #7180 fi
ﬁ_#ﬁ}‘f’fy‘ﬂ\fﬁt,,'_%gf f—’ﬁ/ iﬁ%ﬁ’f » YRt iR fmé [ ):?)r_ R R LY

st 4 R AT

EE A
2024 2023 2024 2023
( A R ;v.,) (‘Tfr%fg[ * m) ( A R i) ( A R ;1,)
ek 31 1,052 182 213 246
M FF T R(H30) 118 214 18 ( 33)
AR ( D ( 4) - -
BRI 1,169 1,052 231 213
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13. shat '—"Li‘?g';fﬁ(ﬁ)
AT AL G AR -

;H A7
2024 2023 2024 2023
(3o B A) (BB Ea) (Tl BiER) (b #iEa)
Eny 2
e AT A 1,478 1, 361 231 213
gt @ ( 309) ( 309) - -
1,169 1, 052 231 213

TG B R T A/ (f P e

Bk F
LA A A2 fedliE b B2t
Grag R a)  GragBREa)  GragBiea) Grhghe)
30
2024 #
2024£17 17 1,382 ( 218) ( 112) 1,052
AYHE R T 118 - - 118
LA R ( 22) - 21 ( 1)
2024124 31p 1,478 ( 218) ( 91) 1,169
2023
2023£17 17 1,077 ( 218) ( ) 782
AP E RS 309 - 35) 274
L E ( 4) - - 4)
2023%12% 31p 1,382 ( 218) ( 112) 1,052
THGEREETERTA/(f GO ()
3 &
2024 2023
(34 B iF ) (3o B tF )
F 372 /;;“%"TW* A8
A 13@@;% 20, 511 20, 949
Tt 28 13
Hu 701 126
21, 240 21,088
AD T AR a2 R AR RT A S ATH s S 3,611,000 (2023 $ 3,585, 000) >
JE G /ﬁ“f%‘rfﬁl“* £ 3 FIA KE 7 o 1R BT AR Y P L 2 I
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CRATA
2 5 19 i 2 & Mg ik
Gisest B A)  Grae B i) Gihm$Ha) GredBri) Gikmua)
=
Y
2023&17 1p 4,833 2,920 141 5, 604 13, 498
7 - - - 1,994 1,994
3F B - - - C 17 ( 17
2023127 317 4,833 2,920 141 7,581 15, 475
B - - - 1,413 1,413
4 B - - - 105) ( 105)
2024127 31p 4,833 2,920 141 8, 889 16, 783
B
2023&17 1p - 438 117 2,271 2,826
rERY Y - - - 567 567
2023127 31p - 438 117 2, 838 3,393
rER T - - - 564 564
2024127 317 - 438 117 3,402 3,957
R RF
2023£17 1p 4,548 2,482 24 107 7,161
7 - - - - -
2023127 31 p *
20245 125 31 1 4,548 2, 482 24 107 7,161
RIE G &9
20244127 317 285 - - 5, 380 5, 665
2023127 317 285 - - 4,636 4,921
JF R
Bl g EEE S N R FRELRLIFY AL ELEY L F 2 MEANE
(CGUs) » p#2 MG £ FfA fiedr™
& &
2024 2023
G ~) (R4 B HA)
A L il
Athena Dynamics Pte Ltd ( “ADPL” ) 185 185
B3 ARPRARIRP
Sea Forrest Engineering Pte Ltd ( “SFE” ) 100 100
285 285




14. & 257 A2 (3
W EY 2 BB
CGUs z ¥ jzw £4pd @& * i

|

TRk R ITIRFE R Ew S FHE MFgle% &

Mg oK F A E R K TR
2B o

[ e &% 2 BAEIER LATME 2 AESE S o

e s A2 A

2.3k et CGUs b & 237

BArd HIE Y

ARBRY BiEZE R NP R PR BTT EMBIE R R AT AR
BiTT ER A E IR BB AT
FIFFARGMEBRRLT AR EREPRFEL -
ADPL SFE
2024 #
A A E & 1. 0% 1. 5%
o TR F 14. 5% 12. 1%
2023 #
AR E & 1. 0% 1. 5%
frmn 3T IR 14. 5% 12. 1%
5. SEFFR>AFEFEL4RTA
B
2024 2023
(Brocg B iF 2)  (Frded ¥ 7))
Fraci bR OLL 4 2
16. P Mme ¥
PR AFELFRPFHRET S 5. 18%2 5.69% (2023 1 7.80%% 8.06%) > & JF ¥ ik F-T
AP ZRFE R FE R AEBEE KFES g BARLPEI2B A& RER ’/}’lfﬁ‘%\”°
el Rl S S SR L
_g__@ j\»‘\:l
2024 2023 2024 2023
CREVLED (34l B ) (34 B ) (34 B 2)
£X3 4, 000 4, 000 4, 000 4,000
E§%r£'¥#5% T ¢ 539) ( 242) - -
Bugems o heng  ( 210) ( 241) - -
3,191 3,511 4, 000 4, 000

RANFAL G AT
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16.

17.

18.

Faamme 05
hirE AR B AC
FRGHEY PR EEEERA PR ET TP FZIRET
FRIFEZHARERY e 2 SFRETT 2 FRE R
B 4 Bk 4o

Jor £ X (2025 & 3 2029 #£) : T E X5 18.0% (2023 &
Jor = £ (2029 & r2is) 1% (2023 & 1 1%)

g 1 9.1% (2023 & 10, 1%)

RaHMETEIFR > FRBARL? FEEIFFH T 4
REIER Y o BAEBGR 5 ITIRF
BB & E 2 PACRIRET v €8 2 AR -

R

VML R L ERRZ I A (3L 20) 0 A
,_‘!F‘/PJ ° vﬂiﬁafzﬁui
o ﬁ_‘_% /”._;L_:;E';EIJF‘

i *

2 17.0%)

chr kAT F B 0.8% P X His BR AR RH

L2l

2024 2023
oM F ) Gihs o)
R 3, 780 4, 094
LRE 789 491
e 28, 690 26, 158
33, 259 30, 743

SN B A A S ATAcR RS 35,360,000 (2023 4 % A4cE$ 33,616,000) ¢

AR EA TR  GRAE fE AT A ATl S 1,654,000 (2023 & B A4 H B

$ 1,511,000) = % f & 47 %
ENTAZENE G
BB RS R BB E S K

SRIEE R S

FAONELD S BEEE

‘/]7 P\?]’E

VARG ENT A FeE Y 1E1<\ﬂ1§_- AT I~ B huE T~ PRI
e EXE R W AERBEGZE N HRBFFRI G T o
TS L2 LT G F TR S RBEF)FHET 2
2024 2023 2023.1.1

Graeg B a) GragBui)  Grhghux)
R detE & (22l9) 12, 392 16, 258 14, 404
YT A 2, 171 1,297 1,885
ENE R 1, 886 4,011 3, 045
LT AN EH L ’i%ﬂ%%@aﬁiﬁa%ﬁﬁﬁaﬁ@@smﬂw@@ﬁ%%ﬁ
BER"S > Lfhe T2t 502 L er B0 e
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19. Btk 3

L)
2024 2023
Gite B A) G e a)
R A £ 12, 492 16, 366
KR4 ( 100) ( 108)
B & ARTE 12, 392 16, 258
A% BT
LAl
2024 2023
Graed B r) G BHx)
R X1 108 2,187
i (f36) ( 8) ( 56)
N - ( 2,623)
B & AR 100 108

RACHE e FHMME L2 & F
$ 166,000)% $ 362,000 (2023 : $ 463, 000) -
20. # # Mfcdr

G ¥z RftEA &3 5 AT4cEU$ 99,000 (2023:

# B * N 7
2024 2023 2024 2023
Gragd o) GragdBHr) GragRidFa) Gragd i)
T bl o8 & ¥ 3508 2, 376 2,009 2,192 1, 844
HEEE 172 274 - -
e 449 490 31 49
oy hd A 3% L1771 660 - -
Reled 2P %0 - - 3, 468 3,112
SN 452 997 - -
A Bl 29 134 - -
i F 313 34 - -
4,968 4,598 5, 691 5,005
FodIAE A
BleF 2P EA - - ( 2,745) -
4, 968 4,598 2, 946 5, 005
AR LA REP o
2024 2023 2024 2023
Gréeg B a) GragdRir) GragdBdr) @raegd o)
LN 31 - 10 - 1, 639
3 - - 2,145 -
2 4 - ( 10) - ( 1,639)
LN 31 - - 2, 145 -
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VA
2024 2023

(Fitesdl B iF ) (el B iF )

FTafe-2g 723 736
Fapo-ms 2, 745 2, 376
3,468 3,112

oo IRIE A ( 2,745) -
723 3, 112

Bfed 2 A BT AR R BRI A A G AT A R AR 2
EFFREF L 468 %I 5.69 % (2023 :4.00 %% 4.99 %) L ERpAFEIIST £
NI PE B 4 oﬂ}’%:}fgfg Fe & s=ie v wfgid *E BRI IEH 4 Froce W82 745, 000¢

Bfch A B A R AR TR
BEZHNERE

£H A0
2024 2023 2024 2023
(Groe e 2) B4 B a)  GrhBEa) G ie)

R3HRAE% 855 9,301 9,309 68 329

SHMELERETNE A2 PN BARAREZ GERE S P oicT

)
2024 2023
(%’ —Ggﬂ Hf;u) (;1'— tb‘t 14%)
WEZEEY TR 9, 301 9, 305
RERE ¥ SRCREE - 200)
BEE2NERE 9, 301 9,105
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* @ P
2024 2023 2024 2023
(Frde B M A (3B M 0F & (F54c B % F 2) (54 B % (F 7))
(3 ) - 267 - 267
EE AR (E ) 1,526 2,687 - -
FEF AR HEER) 10, 554 5, 000 - -
(I A 12, 080 7,954 - 267
I TP AR SR £

ELIme 5 474 1,577 - -
P 11, 606 6,377 - 267
12, 080 7,954 - 267

GICACCENE A )ﬂ-&’ FE2ZAEFFT A —'%i’%?%f‘u‘i%iifjﬁﬂEiairﬂiﬁé_f%é#@r‘%(“ﬁ
x9) #d ML % GL Lighting Holding Pte. Ltd. 2 Arco Illumination Pte.

Ltd. #% =4 % > GL nghtlng Holding Pte. Ltd. ™ B @ 3% i» 4 %
[1lumination Pte. Ltd. ™ = & @&

CEICIOLES T8 BEH Ty SR R A EXE T

i o

FEFT LB AT FTALB L HG2 AR ALFT AT HEFSCHLO)

Yol hOPYEEREA

AR AP B LR 2 I F T

i A (HE )i E U5 6. 79%~6. 85%(2023 & 5 6.59%~7. 06%)/ =+ &

HE A (R ) -F 2P 2.5%(2028 & 5 2.5%)/F &

FEE & EF-FR IS 4 22%5. 37%(2023 & 5 4. 87%~5. 66%)/F £

'TE AR g TR hER IS 0 AFBX D] [BOR e & B ehh e o 4

B koA &iﬁm\?i‘wf% (SIBOR) #4qergd {5 Hin o A& R AL BTG %

IBOR #ed B4z 581 & 5 > 3¢ 2 a BT #7sc B % IR T 399] % (SORA) 1F 5

FRAEASF o X BB izyy SFRS(I9 cniB B A a2 » T H WA >l F kF p &

NI ENEAANR o A B AR E S S TR E o ¥ SIBOR @& 7] SORA

HARBzZMifFiiad 8-

xﬁﬁzfi BAa(BEF)2 FEFTEEF L FENNF T AREDPANBRIRED ARG P B
BERMTB 2P HPFoFt o P FEJIFERCHFEDPFLELP 20 EEkG

1%' [ A S TP l% B SR ERF RS E R o

'H*Hﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ4¢ﬂ7éw$i
PHEZNFIEL AR
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23.

LENE D,

FHMIRG AL BT R REAE I T AT

2 Fh 7 AT E S
EES (#3123) (Fif3124) B3t
Gite B 2) Gt R H L) GisH B E L) (i =)
202417 17 7, 954 8, 031 012 16, 257
RESE A BT SRS
1 3B (1,428) (441) - (1,869)
Ry B g 5, 554 - - 5, 554
“x H A (424) (355) - (779
S g R
Ly 424 355 - 779
SRR LY - 653 - 653
R - (146) - (146)
e 2 B - 2 - 2
- - D) (©)) 10>
2024127 31 p 12,080 8, 088 269 20, 437
202317 17 8, 289 8, 215 295 16, 799
MEFEART AL RS
Y 3,000 - - 3,000
1 (1,835) (501) - (2,336)
—GE 0 R 5T (1,500 - - (1,500)
- HfIA (305) (348) - (653)
W I R
ALy 305 348 - 653
xR E Y - 325 - 325
R 2 B - (8) - ®)
—H - - 23 (23)
2023127 31 p 7, 954 8, 031 272 16, 257
2F LT
& L]
2024 2023
Gracl i 2)  (Gracd B <)
e B 358 374
P 7,730 7,657
8, 088 8,031
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24, % % AR BH

£H A7
2024 2023 2024 2023

Gitef B 2)  Gra e s)  Gies$Ea)  Gitst e )

B bsA 2P 269 272 269 272

R 2, 468 2,748 580 838
e

B 265 305 265 305

T 90 100 - -

LR R - - 3,989 6, 728

AEqgs 352 693 113 39

e f A - 85 - 48

3, 444 4,203 5, 216 8, 230

ERCh R Ao 58 3, 989, 000 (2023 £ :6,647,000) 2 & f1F % 5 4.68%
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BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

The directors present their statement to the members together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of BH Global Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiary corporations
(collectively, the “Group™) and the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024.

In the opinion of the directors:

(1) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and
statement of changes in equity of the Company as set out on pages 11 to 71 are drawn up so as to
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at
31 December 2024 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group
and changes in equity of the Company for the financial year then ended in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
(International); and

(ii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able
to pay its debts as and when they fall due.
Directors

The directors in office at the date of this statement are:

Vincent Lim Hui Eng (Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Patrick Lim Hui Peng (Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer)

Henry Tan Song Kok (Lead Independent Non-executive)

Juliana Lee Kim Lian (Independent Non-executive) (appointed on 30 April 2024)

Kenneth Koh Leong Wie (Independent Non-executive) (appointed on 30 April 2024)

Arrangement to enable directors to acquire benefits

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose object is, to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

Directors’ interest in shares or debentures
The directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the
shares or debentures of the Company and related corporations as recorded in the Register of Directors’

Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 164 of the Act, except as follows:

Number of ordinary shares

Shareholdings Shareholdings in which
registered in their a director is deemed
own names to have an interest
At At At At
1.1.2024 31.12.2024 1.1.2024 31.12.2024
The Company
Vincent Lim Hui Eng 2,392,930 2,392,930 238,692,444 238,692,444

Patrick Lim Hui Peng 2,392,930 2,392,930 238,692,444 238,692,444



BH Global Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries

Directors’ interest in shares or debentures (cont’d)

Number of ordinary shares

Shareholdings Shareholdings in which
registered in their a director is deemed
owWn names to have an interest
At At At At
1.1.2024 31.12.2024 1.1.2024 31.12.2024
Immediate and ultimate holding company
Beng Hui Holding (S) Pte Ltd
Vincent Lim Hui Eng 420,000 420,000 - =
Patrick Lim Hui Peng 420,000 420,000 = -

The deemed interests of Vincent Lim Hui Eng and Patrick Lim Hui Peng in the shares of the Company
are by virtue of their shareholdings in Beng Hui Holding (S) Pte Ltd. At 31 December 2024, Beng Hui
Holding (S) Pte Ltd holds 238,692,444 shares in the Company.

By virtue of Section 7 of the Act, the directors, Vincent Lim Hui Eng and Patrick Lim Hui Peng are
deemed to have an interest in the shares held by the Company in its wholly-owned subsidiary
corporations.

Vincent Lim Hui Eng and Patrick Lim Hui Peng, by virtue of their interest of not less than 20% of the
issued share capital of the Company are deemed to have an interest in the shares held by the Company
in the following subsidiary corporations that are not wholly-owned by the Group.

Number of ordinary shares

Shareholdings Shareholdings in which
registered in their a director is deemed
own names to have an interest
At At At At
1.1.2024 31.12.2024 1.1.2024 31.12.2024
Subsidiary corporations
SASA APAC Pte. Ltd.
Vincent Lim Hui Eng - - 1 1
Patrick Lim Hui Peng - - 1 1
Athena Dynamics Pte. Ltd.
Vincent Lim Hui Eng - - 1,535,000 1,535,000
Patrick Lim Hui Peng E - 1,535,000 1,535,000
Athena International Holdings Pte. Ltd.
Vincent Lim Hui Eng - - 425,000 425,000
Patrick Lim Hui Peng - - 425,000 425,000
Omnisense Systems Private Limited
Vincent Lim Hui Eng - - 274,353 274,353
Patrick Lim Hui Peng - - 274,353 274,353



BH Global Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries

Directors’ interest in shares or debentures (cont’d)

Number of ordinary shares

Shareholdings Shareholdings in which
registered in their a director is deemed
own names to have an interest
At At At At
1.1.2024 31.12.2024 1.1.2024 31.12.2024
Subsidiary corporations (cont’d)
Sea Forrest Technologies Pte. Ltd.
Vincent Lim Hui Eng - - 400,008 —
Patrick Lim Hui Peng - - 400,008 -
Sea Forrest Technologies (S) Pte. Ltd.
Vincent Lim Hui Eng — - - 400,008
Patrick Lim Hui Peng - - - 400,008
Sea Forrest Engineering Pte. Ltd.
Vincent Lim Hui Eng - - 10,000 10,000
Patrick Lim Hui Peng - - 10,000 10,000
Sea Forrest Power Solutions Pte. Litd.
Vincent Lim Hui Eng - - 10,000 10,000
Patrick Lim Hui Peng - - 10,000 10,000

The directors’ interests in the shares of the Company at 21 January 2025 were the same as those as at
31 December 2024.

Share options

No option to take up unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiary corporations was granted during
the financial year.

There were no shares issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of options to take up
unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiary corporations whether granted before or during the

financial year.

There were no unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiary corporations under option at the end of
the financial year.

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee during the financial year and at the date of this report are:

Henry Tan Song Kok (Chairman)
Juliana Lee Kim Lian (Member) (appointed on 30 April 2024)
Kenneth Koh Leong Wie (Member) (appointed on 30 April 2024)



BH Global Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries

Audit Committee (cont’d)

The Audit Committee carried out its functions specified in Section 201B(5) of the Companies Act 1967.
Their functions are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report contained in the Annual Report.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the independent auditor and
has nominated Baker Tilly TFW LLP for re-appointment as independent auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Independent auditor

The independent auditor, Baker Tilly TFW LLP, has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the directors

Pdtrick Lim Hui Peng.
Director

Vincent Lim Hui Eng
Director

B APR 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BH Global Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as set out on pages 11 to 71, which comprise the
statements of financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity of the Group and of the Company, and consolidated statement of cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of
financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)”) so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and
of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows
of the Group and of the changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) Code of Professional Conduct and
Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (ACRA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Baker Tilly TFW LLP (trading as Baker Tilly) is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are
separate and independent legal entities

Baker Tilly TFW LLP (Registration No.T10LL1485G) is an accounting limited liability partnership registered in Singapore under the
Limited Liability Partnerships Act (Chapter 163A).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED (cont’d)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
Key Audit Matters (cont’d)

Impairment assessment of loan to and amount due from an associated company

(Refer to Notes 2(j), 16, 20 and 31(c) to the financial statements)
The key audit matter:

At 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of loan to and amount due from an associated company,
GL Lighting Holding Pte Ltd and its subsidiaries (“GLH”) for the Group were $3,191,000 and
$2,376,000 respectively; and the outstanding amounts of loan to and amount due from GLH for the
Company were $4,000,000 and $2,192,000 respectively.

In estimating the lifetime expected credit losses (“ECL”) of loan to and amount due from an associated
company, the Group uses cash flow forecasts from the associated company over the period the Group
expects to recover the loan to and amount due from GLH. As the calculation of loss allowance on loan
to and amount due from an associated company is subject to assumptions and forecasts, any changes to
these estimations may affect the estimation of the loss allowance and accordingly, the carrying amounts
of loan to and amount due from an associated company.

The impairment assessment of the Group’s and the Company’s loan to and amount due from GLH are
considered to be significant to our audit and we focused on this area because of the significant estimates
required in the assessment of the ECL.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s process for estimating the ECL and evaluated
management’s assessment of the lifetime expected credit loss. We also obtained an understanding of
the business and operating environment of GLH.

We assessed the reasonableness of management’s assumptions and inputs used in the cash flow
projections by comparing projected revenue growth rate and gross profit margins to historical data,
existing and projected order book status, management’s plans and understood how they have considered
the general market conditions in their estimates. In addition, we also performed retrospective review to
evaluate management’s estimate. We also considered the appropriateness and adequacy of the
disclosures in respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED (cont’d)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
Key Audit Matters (cont’d)

Assessment of net realisable value of inventories

(Refer to Notes 2(j) and 17 to the financial statements)
The key audit matter:

At 31 December 2024, the Group’s inventories amounted to $33,259,000 (net of write-down) and
inventory write-down for the current financial year of $1,654,000 was recorded in the consolidated
income statement.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable values. In determining the carrying value
and whether any write-down of the inventories is necessary, management reviews for slow-moving and
obsolete inventories and inventories are written down where there are declines in net realisable values
below the cost.

Management estimates the net realisable value for inventories by taking into consideration the current
economic condition, historical sales record, inventory ageing analysis, and subsequent sales. The write-
down for slow-moving and obsolete inventories is considered a key audit matter and we focused on this
area as significant judgement is required in identifying slow-moving and obsolete inventories and
estimations are involved in determining the appropriate level of write-down required. Any significant
changes in anticipated future selling prices and saleability may affect the carrying value of the
inventories.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

We obtained an understanding of management’s process over the monitoring and review of inventory
obsolescence, the identification of slow-moving inventories, and the policy in place to determine the
write down required.

We focused our work on the evaluation of management’s assessment of slow-moving and obsolete
inventories by reviewing the age of inventory, comparing to historical sales record and where applicable,
subsequent sales. Other than slow-moving and obsolete inventories identified by management, we
verified that inventories are recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable value by comparing, on a
sample basis, the recorded unit cost of inventories against recent/subsequent selling prices and reviewed
management’s assessment and basis for inventories with no subsequent sales. Our audit procedures also
include testing the reliability of the inventory ageing report and inquiries of management for any
identified obsolete or slow-moving inventories during our stocktake observation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED (cont’d)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report 2024 but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and SFRS(I), and for devising and maintaining a system of
internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they
are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain
accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED (cont’d)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
review of the audit work performed for purposes of group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED (cont’d)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by
those subsidiary corporations incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors, have been

properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Lim Teck Wee.

EMJ”[W] T wT

Baker Tilly TFW LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

8 April 2025
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BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Group
2024 2023
Note $°000 $7000

Revenue 3 60,385 59,154
Cost of sales (35,837) (34,752)
Gross profit 24,548 24,402
Other operating income
- Interest 319 288
- Others - 508 177
Selling and distribution expenses (14,546) (13,061)
Administrative expenses (8,121) (8,324)
Finance costs 4 (779) (653)
Reversal of impairment losses on financial assets 8 56
Profit from operations 1,937 2,885
Share of results of joint venture 857 615
Share of results of associated companies Q77 115
Profit before tax 2,517 3,615
Tax expense 5 (458) 947)
Profit for the financial year 6 2,059 2,668
Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 2,686 3,456
Non-controlling interests (627) (788)

2,059 2,668
Earnings per share (expressed in cents per share)
Basic and diluted : 8 0.90 1.15

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive income/(loss):

Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Currency translation differences arising on consolidation

Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of joint venture

Share of other comprehensive loss of associated companies

Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss:
Currency translation differences arising on consolidation

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the financial year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the financial year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Group
2024 2023
$°000 $7000
2,059 2,668
) 64
41 (72)
29 127)
7 (135)
= (13)
7 (148)
2,066 2,520
2,693 3,321
(627) (801)
2,066 2,520
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BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2024

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in joint venture

Investment in associated
companies

Deferred tax assets

Intangible assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Loan to an associated company

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories

Contract assets

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Contract liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Provisions

Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

9
10
11

12
13
14

15
16

18

24
25
22
23

Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
16,982 17,476 - -
- - 11,295 11,163
3,400 2,884 949 949
20 - - -
1,478 1,361 231 213
5,665 4,921 — -
4 2 — -
3,191 3,517 4,000 4,000
30,740 30,161 16,475 16,325
33,259 30,743 - -
2,177 1,297 - -
12,392 16,258 - -
4,968 4,598 2,946 5,005
5,301 5,305 68 325
58,097 58,201 3,014 5,330
88,837 88,362 19,489 21,655
309 309 = -
474 1,577 - -
7,730 7,657 - -
8,513 9,543 - -
1,886 4,011 - -
5,516 5,519 - -
3,444 4,203 5,216 8,230
137 83 - -
11,606 6,377 - 267
358 374 - -
1,862 2,846 - -
24,809 23,413 5,216 8,497
33,322 32,956 5,216 8,497
55,515 55,406 14,273 13,158
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BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (cont’d)
At 31 December 2024

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Equity
Share capital 26 58,535 58,535 58,535 58,535
Currency translation reserve B (584) - -
Capital reserves 28 (1,218) (1,342) = =
Retained profit/(accumulated
losses) 377 (309) (44,262) (45,377)
Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, total 57,117 56,300 14,273 13,158
Non-controlling interests (1,602) (894) - =
Total equity 55,515 55,406 14,273 13,158

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

<4—— Attributable to equity holders of the Company —»

Share
capital
$000

Group
At 1 January 2024 58,535

Profit/(loss) for the
financial year -

Currency
translation
reserve
$°000

(584)

Retained profit/

Capital
reserves
$°000

(1,342)

(Accumulated
losses)
$°000

(309)

2,686

Non-
controlling
Total interests
$°000 $°000

56,300 (894)

2,686 627)

Total
equity
$°000

55,406

2,059

Other comprehensive
income/(loss)

Currency translation differences
arising on consolidation -

Share of other comprehensive
income of joint venture -

Share of other comprehensive
loss of associated
companies =

©)

41

29

® -

41 =

(29) =

&)

41

(29)

Other comprehensive income
for the financial year, net of tax =

Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the
financial year -

Non-controlling interest arising
from acquisition of a subsidiary -

Deconsolidation of a
deregistered subsidiary

(Note 10) =

Dividend (Note 27) -

124

2,686

65

(2,065)

2,693 (627)

- 133

189 (214)

(2,065) =

2,066

133

(25)

(2,065)

At 31 December 2024 58,535

(577)

(1,218)

377

57,117 (1,602)

55,515

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (cont’d)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

<«—— Attributable to equity holders of the Company —»

Currency Non-
Share translation  Capital Accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve reserves losses Total interests equity
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Group
At 1 January 2023 58,535 (449) (1,977) (1,971) 54,138 (105) 54,033
Profit/(loss) for the
financial year - - - 3,456 3,456 (788) 2,668
Other comprehensive
(loss)/income
Currency translation differences
arising on consolidation - 64 - - 64 (13) 51
Share of other comprehensive
loss of joint venture = (72) = - (72) - (72)
Share of other comprehensive
loss of associated companies - (127) - - 127) - (127)
Other comprehensive loss for the
financial year, net of tax - (135) - - (135) (13) (148)
Total comprehensive
(loss)/income for the
financial year - (135) - 3,456 3,321 (801) 2,520
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries
under liquidation - - 635 (294) 341 12 353
Dividend (Note 27) - - - (1,500) (1,500) - (1,500)
At 31 December 2023 58,535 (584) (1,342) (309) 56,300 (894) 55,406

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (cont’d)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Share Accumulated Total
capital losses equity
$°000 $°000 $°000
Company
At 1 January 2023 58,535 (48,501) 10,034
Profit and total comprehensive income for the
financial year - 4,624 4,624
Dividend (Note 27) - (1,500) (1,500)
At 31 December 2023 58,535 (45,377) 13,158
Profit and total comprehensive income for the
financial year - 3,180 3,180
Dividend (Note 27) - (2,065) (2,065)
At 31 December 2024 58,535 (44,262) 14,273

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Group
2024 2023
$°000 $°000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 2,517 3,615
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets 564 567
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,640 1,610
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 2 1
Foreign exchange difference (60) 11
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 (1)
Gain on lease termination 9 —
Intangible assets written off 105 17
Interest expense 779 653
Interest income (319) (288)
Write-down of inventories 1,654 1,511
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables ®) (56)
Provision for warranty 67 87
Reversal of provision for warranty Q) 35)
Effects from deconsolidation of a subsidiary 108 -
Share of results of joint venture (857) (615)
Share of results of associated companies 277 (115)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 6,453 6,962
Inventories 4,178) 743
Contract assets (880) 588
Contract liabilities (2,125) 966
Receivables 3,822 (1,100)
Payables (762) (2,501)
Currency translation adjustments (26) 58
Cash generated from operations 2,304 5,716
Income tax paid (1,543) (380)
Net cash generated from operating activities 761 5,336
Cash flows from investing activities
Development costs (1,413) (1,994)
Dividends received from a joint venture 381 378
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 64 3
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (Note 9(b)) (698) (1,155)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,666) (2,768)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

18



BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont’d)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Group

2024 2023

$°000 $°000
Cash flows from financing activities
Decrease in fixed deposits under pledge and restricted cash 200 1
Dividend paid to shareholders (Note 27) (2,065) (1,500)
Drawdown of borrowings - 3,000
Net drawdown/(repayment) of short-term borrowings 5,554 (1,500)
Repayment of borrowings (1,428) (1,835)
Repayment of lease liabilities (441) (501
Interest paid (779) (653)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 1,041 (2,988)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 136 (420)
Cash and cash equivalénts at beginning of financial year 5,105 5,536
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 60 (11
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year (Note 21) 5,301 5,105

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BH GLOBAL CORPORATION LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.

1 Corporate information

The Company (Co. Reg. No. 200404900H) is incorporated and domiciled in Singapore and is listed
on the Main Board of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”). The address
of its registered office is 8 Penjuru Lane, Singapore 609189.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 10.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company is Beng Hui Holding (S) Pte Ltd,
incorporated in Singapore.

2 Material accounting policies
a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars (“$), which is the Company’s
functional currency and all financial information presented in Singapore Dollars are rounded to
the nearest thousand ($°000) except when otherwise indicated. The financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 and Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)). The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except as disclosed in the accounting policies
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with SFRS(I) requires the use of estimates

and assumption that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts

of revenues and expenses during the financial year. Although these estimates are based on

management’s best knowledge of current events and actions and historical experiences and

various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, actual results
~may ultimately differ from those estimates.

Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement in applying accounting policies, or areas
where assumptions and estimates have a significant risk of resulting in material adjustment
within the next financial year are disclosed in Note 2(j) to the financial statements.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current receivables
(excluding prepayments, advance payment to suppliers and GST receivable), trade and other
payables (excluding GST payable and provision for unutilised leave) and accruals, and current
borrowings approximate their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of
these financial instruments.
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BH Global Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries

2 Material accounting policies (cont’d)

a)

b)

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
New and revised standards that are adopted

In the current financial year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised SFRS(I) and SFRS(I)
Interpretations (“SFRS(I) INT”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current
financial year. Changes to the Group’s accounting policies have been made as required, in
accordance with the transitional provisions in the respective SFRS(I) and SFRS(I) INT.

The adoption of these new/revised SFRS(I) and SFRS(I) INT did not have any material effect
on the financial results or position of the Group and the Company.

New and revised standards not yet effective

New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that have been issued at the
balance sheet date but are not yet effective for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 have
not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of these are expected to have a
significant effect on the financial statements of the Group and the Company, except as disclosed
below:

SFRS(I) 18: Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

SFRS(I) 18 will replace SFRS(I) 1-1 Presentation of Financial Statements for annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with earlier application permitted. It requires
retrospective application with specific transition provisions.

The new standard introduces the following key requirements:

+  Entities are required to classify all income and expenses into five categories in the statement
of profit or loss, namely operating, investing, financing, discontinued operations and
income tax categories. Entities are also required to present subtotals and totals for
“operating profit”, “profit or loss before financing and income taxes”, and “profit or loss”
in the statement of profit or loss.

* Management-defined performance measures (“MPMs”) are disclosed in a single note
within the financial statements. This note includes details on how the measure is calculated,
the relevance of the information provided to users, and a reconciliation to the most
comparable subtotal specified by the SFRS(I).

* Enhanced guidance on aggregating and disaggregating information in financial statements.

In addition, all entities are required to use the operating profit subtotal as the starting point for
the statement of cash flows when presenting operating cash flows under the indirect method.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the new standard on the primary financial
statements and notes to the financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Trading in goods - marine cables, lighting equipment and accessories

The Group transfers control and recognises a sale when they deliver goods to their customers
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract. A receivable

is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.
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BH Global Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries

2 Material accounting policies (cont’d)
b) Revenue recognition (cont’d)
Trading in goods - marine cables, lighting equipment and accessovies (cont’d)

For protective reasons, a portion of the contract consideration is received upfront, and the
remaining consideration is received from customers when goods are delivered to the customers.
As such, no financing component has been recognised as the payment terms are for reasons
other than financing.

Marine surveillance systems and thermal scanners

The Group manufactures and sells marine surveillance systems and thermal scanners and
provide maintenance services in relation to the products sold. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price specified in the contract.

The Group transfers control and recognises a sale at the point in time when they deliver goods
to their customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is
the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

Revenue from maintenance services is recognised on a time-based basis over the term of the
maintenance contract period. Such services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied
over time as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as the Group
renders the service to the customer. A contract asset is recognised when the Group has
performed under the contract but has not yet billed the customer. Where there is advance billing
to customer, a contract liability is recognised for billing in excess of revenue recognised.

Cybersecurity solutions

The Group sells and distributes cybersecurity platform solutions to corporate customers. The
performance obligations of the Group include the delivery of hardware and licenses, the
completion of training and professional services in the implementation of cybersecurity
solutions. Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract.

Revenue and receivables are recognised when the hardware and licenses are delivered and
accepted by customers as this is the point in time when control has been transferred to the
customer with no unfulfilled obligations that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products and the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

For professional services related to the implementation of cybersecurity solutions, revenue is
recognised when the control over the cybersecurity solutions is transferred to the customer. At
contract inception, the Group assesses whether they transfer control of the cybersecurity
solutions over time or at a point in time by determining if (a) its performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the Group; and (b) the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date. The cybersecurity solutions have no alternative
use for the Group, and the Group has enforceable rights to payment arising from the contractual
terms. For these contracts, revenue is recognised over time by reference to the Group's progress
towards satisfying the service performance obligations in completing the implementation of the
cybersecurity solutions. The measure of progress toward completion of a performance
obligation is determined based on output method where the revenue is recognised by measuring
the value of the services transferred to date to the customer. The customer is invoiced on a
milestone payment schedule. If the value of the services transferred by the Group exceed the
payments, a coniract asset is recognised for the conditional right to consideration. If the
payments exceed the value of services transferred, a contract liability is recognised.
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BH Global Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries

2 Material accounting policies (cont’d)

b) Revenue recognition (cont’d)

d)

Engineering services

The Group provides engineering services such as marine pipe installation, procurement and
construction management for electrical, instrumentation and telecommunications systems for
onshore and offshore facilities. Revenue from engineering services is recognised as
performance obligations satisfied over time using input method, measured by reference to the
Group’s progress towards completion, based on the proportion of costs incurred to date to the
estimated total costs. Costs incurred that are not related to the performance obligations or that
do not contribute towards satisfying a performance obligation are excluded from the
measurement of progress and instead are expensed as incurred. For contracts where the Group
does not have an enforceable right to payment, revenue is recognised only when the
performance obligations are fulfilled, and the customers have accepted in accordance with the
sales contract. If the value of engineering services rendered exceeds payments received from
the customer, a contract asset is recognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate the depreciable amount of
property, plant and equipment over their expected useful lives. The estimated useful lives are
as follows:

Number of years

Extension, addition and alteration works 10 to 45
Motor vehicles 2to5
Warehouse equipment and fittings 5
Computers and office equipment 3
Furniture, fittings and renovation 5
Plant and machinery 5

The leasehold properties are depreciated based on the lease period.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting date. The effects of any
revision are recognised in profit or loss when the changes arise.

Intangible assets

Research and development costs

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred, except for development costs which
relate to the design and testing of new or improved materials, products or processes which are

recognised as an asset to the extent that it is expected that such assets will generate future
economic benefits.

Deferred development costs are amortised from the date of commercial production of the

product or from the date the process is put into use. Such costs are currently being amortised
on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, not exceeding 10 years.
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BH Global Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries

2 Material accounting policies (cont’d)
e) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories
comprises costs of purchases and those costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventories

to their present condition and location.

Cost is determined on the following basis:

Marine electrical equipment, consumables and others -  first-in first-out
Marine surveillance systems and thermal scanners - weighted average
Marine pipes - weighted average

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
costs of completion and selling expenses.

f) Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange of consideration.

When a Group entity is the lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Number of years
Leasehold properties 2t0 30

The right-of-use assets are presented within “Property, plant and equipment” in the statements
of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

The lease liabilities are presented as a separate line in the statements of financial position.
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BH Global Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries

2 Material accounting policies (cont’d)

f)

g)

Leases (cont’d)
When a Group entity is the lessee (cont’d)
Lease liabilities (cont’d)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured (and a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use asset made) if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the
lease payments (e.g. changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Lease payments on short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option) and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to the fair value of the financial assets on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Trade receivables without a
significant financing component is initially measured at transaction prices.

Classification and measurement

All financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

«  Amortised cost; and
*  Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

The classification is based on the entity’s business model for managing the financial asset and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

The Group reclassifies financial assets when and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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2 Material accounting policies (cont’d)
g) Financial assets (cont’d)
Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments

Debt instruments include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables (excluding
prepayments, advance payment to suppliers and GST receivable) and loan to an associated
company. The subsequent measurement categories, depending on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and cash flow characteristics of the asset are as follows:

Amortised cost

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are
met:

« The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

»  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
(“EIR”) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in interest income using the EIR method.

Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for financial assets
carried at amortised cost. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate, where applicable, adjusted
to reflect changes in the credit risk of the debtor.

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not have a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach to recognise a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted as appropriate for current conditions and
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period but determines at the current reporting date that the
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial assets with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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2 Material accounting policies (cont’d)

h) Financial liabilities

)

Financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and accruals (excluding GST
payables and provision for unutilised leave), borrowings and lease liabilities. Financial
liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

The financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, plus, in the case of financial
liabilities other than fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss and
other than financial guarantees are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised,
and through the amortisation process. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is extinguished.

Impairment of non-financial assets excluding goodwill

At each reporting date, the Group assesses the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
estimating value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A previously recognised impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is only
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Calculation of expected credit loss allowance

When measuring expected credit loss (“ECL”), the Group uses reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information, which is based on assumptions and forecasts of future economic
conditions with consideration of the impact of the current macroeconomic uncertainties and
how these conditions will affect the Group’s ECL assessment. Loss given default is an estimate
of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from
collateral and integral credit enhancements.
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2 Material accounting policies (cont’d)
j) XKey sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)
Calculation of expected credit loss allowance (cont’d)

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an
estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes
historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

In measuring ECL of loan to and amount due from an associated company, the Group uses cash
flow forecasts from the associated company over the period the Group expects to recover the
cash flows. The cash flow forecasts involve assumptions and estimates in the forecasting and
projection of sales and operating cash flows for the subsequent years. As the calculation of loss
allowance on loan to and amount due from an associated company is subject to assumptions
and forecasts, any changes to these estimations will affect the amounts of loss allowance
recognised and the carrying amounts of loan to and amount due from an associated company.
The carrying amounts of loan to and amount due from an associated company at the end of the
reporting period are as disclosed in Notes 16 and 20 respectively.

Management determines the loss allowance on trade receivables and contract assets by
categorising them based on their credit profiles, historical loss patterns and historical payment
profiles. The Group also assesses at the end of the reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that the receivables and contract balances from individual customers is
credit-impaired based on factors such as insolvency, financial difficulties of the customer or
significant delay in repayments.

Based on the simplified approach, there was no significant exposure to the expected credit loss
on trade receivables and contract assets. The Group estimates the expected credit loss rates for
each category of past due status of the debtors based on historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. At every reporting date, historical defaults rates are updated and
change in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECL is a significant estimate. The amount of ECL is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic condition may not be representative of customers’ actual default in
the future. The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables and the information about
ECL are disclosed in Notes 19 and 31(c).

Estimation of net realisable values of inventories

Management reviews for slow-moving and obsolete inventories and for inventories where there
are declines in net realisable value below cost, and writes down inventories for any such
declines. Management estimates the net realisable value for inventories by taking into
consideration the current economic condition, historical sales record, inventory ageing analysis,
and subsequent sales. Such an evaluation process requires significant judgement as it requires
management to exercise judgement in identifying slow-moving and obsolete inventories and
making estimates of the net realisable value to determine the appropriate level of write-down
required. Any significant changes in anticipated future selling prices and saleability may affect
the carrying value of inventories.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s inventories at the end of the reporting period and the

amount of inventories written down for the financial year are disclosed in Notes 17 and 6
respectively.
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3 Revenue

The following table provides a disaggregation disclosure of the Group’s revenue by timing of
revenue recognition:

Electrical
and Technical Integration
Supply Security Engineering Total
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
2024
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 47,070 4,665 708 52,443
Over time - 1,121 6,821 7,942
47,070 5,786 7,529 60,385
2023
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 43,832 7,400 2,337 53,569
Over time - 1,153 4,432 5,585
43,832 8,553 6,769 59,154
Group
2024 2023
$°000 $°000

Revenue recognised during the financial year from:

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the
financial year 2,687 2,681

The Group applies the practical expedient in SFRS(I) 15 and does not disclose information about
its remaining performance obligation that is part of a contract that has an original expected duration
of one year or less.

4  Finance costs

Group
2024 2023
$°000 §7000
Interests on borrowings
- bank loans 424 305
- lease liabilities 355 348
779 653
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5

Tax expense

Tax expense attributable to profit is made up of:

Group
2024 2023
$°000 $’000
Current income tax 749 1,292
Deferred tax (Note 13) (118) (560)
631 732

(Over)/under provision in respect of prior years
- current income tax 173) (71)
- deferred tax (Note 13) - 286

458 947

The income tax expense on the results of the financial year differs from the amount of income tax
determined by applying the Singapore standard rate of income tax due to the following factors:

Group
2024 2023
$°000 $°000
Profit before tax 2,517 3,615
Less: Share of results of joint venture and associated companies (580) (730)
Profit before tax and share of results of joint venture and
associated companies 1,937 2,885
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 17% (2023: 17%) 329 491
Singapore statutory stepped income exemption a7 35)
Income not subject to tax (182) 2)
Over provision of income tax in prior years 173) (71)
Under provision of deferred tax in prior years - 286
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 470 209
Utilisation of deferred tax assets not previously recognised - (83)
Deferred tax not recognised - 107
Others 31 45
458 947
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6 Profit for the financial year

Group
2024 2023
$°000 $°000

Profit for the financial year is arrived at after charging:
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 14) 564 567
Audit fees paid/payable to:
- auditors of the Company 244 238
- other auditors* 60 45
Non-audit fees paid/payable to:
- auditors of the Company 36 37
- other auditors* 9 5
Bad debts written off 28 10
Cost of inventories included in cost of sales 35,360 33,616
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 9) 1,640 1,610
Directors’ fee paid/payable to:
- directors of the Company 265 305
- directors of the subsidiaries 920 100
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss ) 1
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (125) 209
Intangible assets written off (Note 14) 105 17
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 @))
Gain on lease termination )] —
Provision for warranty (Note 25) 67 87
Rental expenses (Note 9(c)):
- others 93 101
Staff costs (Note 7) 13,400 13,563
Write down of inventories to net realisable value 1,654 1,511
and crediting:
Government grant income 335 277
Interest income:
- from an associated company 319 288
Management fee income from an associated company 36 36
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables (Note 19) 8 56
Reversal of provision for warranty (Note 25) 5 35

* Includes independent member firms of the Baker Tilly International network
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7  Staff costs

Group

2024 2023

$°000 $°000
Key management personnel
- Salaries and related costs 3,382 4,016
- Central Provident Fund contributions 129 182
Close family members of key management personnel
- Salaries and related costs 658 601
- Central Provident Fund contributions 104 96
Other staff
- Salaries and related costs 8,041 7,735
- Central Provident Fund contributions 830 593
Staff training and welfare 256 340

13,400 13,563

8 Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders
of the Company is based on the following data:

Group
2024 2023
Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company ($°000) 2,686 3,456
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
basic and diluted earnings per share (’000) 300,000 300,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 0.90 1.15

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, diluted earnings per share is similar to basic
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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BH Global Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries

9 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

a)

b)

The net carrying amounts of leasehold properties and extension, addition and alteration works
mortgaged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 22), are as below:

Group
2024 2023
$°000 $°000
Leasehold properties 10,405 10,530
Extension, addition and alteration works 5,064 5,381
15,469 15,911
Non-cash transactions
Group
2024 2023
$°000 $°000
Aggregate cost of property, plant and equipment 1,351 1,480
Less: additions to right-of-use assets (653) (325)
Net cash outflow for purchase of property, plant and equipment 698 1,155

The Group leases land and office premises for its operations. Leases of land generally have
lease terms of between 20 and 30 years (2023: 20 and 30 years) and office premises have lease
terms of 2 years (2023: 2 years).

The Group also has certain leases of machinery and office premises with lease terms of
12 months or less, and leases of office equipment with low values. The Group applies the
‘short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases as
prescribed by SFRS(I) 16.

(i) Carrying amount of right-of-use assets are as follows:

Group
2024 2023
$°000 $°000
Classified within property. plant and equipment
Leasehold properties 10,479 10,641
Motor vehicles 14 65

Additions to right-of-use assets during the financial year were $653,000 (2023: $325,000).

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement:

Group

2024 2023

$°000 $°000
Depreciation charge for the year
Leasehold properties 678 724
Motor vehicles 23 27
Lease expense not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
Lease expense - short-term leases 84 92
Lease expense - low-value assets leases 9 9
Total (Note 6) 93 101
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 4) 355 348

During the financial year, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $889,000 (2023:
$950,000).

35



BH Global Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries

10 Investment in subsidiaries

Unquoted equity shares, at cost

At 1 January

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note A)

Struck off of a subsidiary

Deconsolidation of subsidiaries under liquidation

At 31 December

Movement of allowance for impairment:

At 1 January

Deconsolidation of subsidiaries under liquidation

At 31 December
Net carrying amount

a) Details of subsidiaries:

Name of subsidiary
(Country of
incorporation)

Beng Hui Marine
Electrical Pte. Ltd. *
((EBI_IMS ’)

(Singapore)

SOPEX Innovations Pte.
Ltd. *
(Singapore)

Sea Forrest Technologies
Pte. Ltd. * (“SFT™)
(Singapore) (Note A)

Sea Forrest Technologies
(S) Pte. Ltd. ** (“SFTS”)
(Singapore) (Note A)

Genesis Environtech Pte.
Ltd. @ (“GEN”)
(Singapore)

Omnisense Systems
Private Limited »
(CGOMS’))

(Singapore)

ONE BHG Pte. Ltd. @
(“ONE BHG”)
(Singapore)

Company
2024 2023
$°000 $7000
16,901 19,683
532 -
(400) -
- (2,782)
17,033 16,901
5,738 8,020
- (2,282)
5,738 5,738
11,295 11,163

Principal activities

Wholesaler and retailer of electrical
goods, appliances and other related
products in marine supply and

servicing

Wholesale trade in marine equipment
and accessories

Investment holding

Investment holding

Manufacture and repair of other special
purpose machinery

Research and development,
manufacture and sale of medical,
professional, engineering, scientific
and precision equipment

Manufacture and repair of other special
purpose machinery and engineering
design and consultancy services in
energy management and clean energy
system

Group’s effective

equity interest held
2024 2023
Y% %
100 100
100 100
- 80
80 =
— 100
75.7 75.7
- 100
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10 Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)

a) Details of subsidiaries (cont’d):

Name of subsidiary
(Country of
incorporation)

Athena International
Holdings Pte. Ltd. *
(“AIH’))

(Singapore)

BOS Offshore & Marine
Pte. Ltd. * (“BOS™)
(Singapor_e)

Blue Sky Ecotech Ltd. @
(C‘BSE’,)
(Taiwan)

Principal activities

Manufacture and repair of engineering
and scientific instruments

Provision of marine and offshore related
services and products

Manufacture and repair of other special
purpose machinery and engineering
design and consultancy services in
energy management and clean energy
system

Subsidiary held by SFTS (Note A)

Sea Forrest Power
Solutions Pte. Ltd. **
(“SFP’))

(Singapore)

Sea Forrest Engineering
Pte. Ltd. ** (“SFE”)
(Singapore)

Engineering design and consultancy
services in energy management and
clean energy systems, and wholesale
of marine equipment and accessories

Ship and offshore structure repairs and
modification while afloat

Subsidiary held by SFT (Note A)

Sea Forrest Power
Solutions Pte. Ltd. **
(‘CSFP?))

(Singapore)

Sea Forrest Engineering
Pte. Ltd. ** (“SFE”)
(Singapore)

Subsidiary held by ATH

Athena Dynamics Pte.
Ltd. *

(Singapore)

SASA APAC Pte. Ltd. *
(Singapore)

Subsidiary held by OMS
Omnisense Systems USA,

Inc »
(UsA)

Engineering design and consultancy
services in energy management and
clean energy systems, and wholesale
of marine equipment and accessories

Ship and offshore structure repairs and
modification while afloat

-Provision of IT electronics products and

solutions

Provision of software consuitancy
services

Sales and service of marine equipment

Group’s effective

equity interest held
2024 2023
% %
85 85
100 100
- 100
80 -
80 -
- 80
- 80
85 85
85 85
75.7 75.7
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10 Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)

a)

b)

Details of subsidiaries: (cont’d)

*  Audited by Baker Tilly TFW LLP

A Audited by Baker Tilly TFW LLP for the purpose of consolidation

**  Audited by A Garanzia LLP

@  During the financial year, GEN and ONE BHG had been struck off, and BSE had been
fully liquidated

#  Struck off on 20 February 2025

Note A During the financial year, the Company obtained control of Sea Forrest Technologies
(S) Pte Ltd (“SFTS”) as part of the Group's restructuring plan. SFTS is a newly
incorporated company by a director of Sea Forrest Technologies Pte Ltd (“SFT”),
serving as its sole director and sole shareholder, holding one share. Pursuant to an
agreement, SFT transferred all its assets (including shares in Sea Forrest Engineering
Pte Ltd (“SFE”) and Sea Forrest Power Solutions Pte Ltd (“SFP”)) and liabilities to
SFTS in exchange for 500,009 ordinary shares issued by SFTS to SFT as consideration.
Subsequently, SFT distributed all its SFTS shares via a dividend in specie to the
Company and the director of SFTS representing 80% and 20% respectively of the
shares transferred. The restructuring plan does not have a significant impact to the
Group.

In accordance with Rule 716 of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited - Listing
Rules, the Audit Committee and the Directors of the Company confirmed that they are satisfied
that the appointment of different auditors for its subsidiaries would not compromise the standard
and effectiveness of the audit of the Group.

Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest
(GCNCI’))

The Group has the following subsidiaries that have NCI that are considered by management to
be material to the Group:

Ownership
Principal place of business/ interest held by
Name of subsidiary Country of incorporation NCI
2024 2023
% %
Omnisense Systems Private Limited ~Singapore 24.3 243
and its subsidiary
(“OMS Group™)

The following is the summarised financial information of OMS Group. These financial
information include consolidation adjustments but before inter-company eliminations.

Summarised statement of financial position

OMS Group

2024 2023

$°000 $°000
Non-current assets 2,624 2,465
Current assets 8,225 9,008
Non-current liabilities 35) (74)
Current liabilities (18,292) (15,319)
Net liabilities (7,478) (3,920)
Net liabilities attributable to NCI (1,817) 951)
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10 Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)

b)

Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest
(“NCTI”) (cont’d)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

OMS Group

2024 2023

$°000 $°000
Revenue 4,009 3,389
Other expenses (8,101) (7,136)
Loss before tax (4,092) (3,747)
Income tax credit 517 374
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the financial year 3,575) (3,373)
Loss allocated to NCI (868) (818)
Summarised statement of cash flows

OMS Group

2024 2023

$°000 $°000
Cash flows (used in)/generated from operating activities 2,127) 798
Cash flows used in mnvesting activities (376) (1,152)
Cash flows generated from/(used in) financing activities 2,629 (262)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 126 (616)

11 Investment in joint venture
a) Investment in joint venture is summarised below:
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Carrying amount
Dream Marine Ship Spare Parts Trading
LLC (“DMS”) 3,400 2,884 949 949

b)

Included in investment in joint venture of the Company and the Group is an amount of
$865,000 (2023: $865,000) being equity loan due from the joint venture.

The following information relates to the joint venture at the end of the financial year:

Name of joint venture Group’s effective
(Country of incorporation) Principal activities equity interest held
2024 2023
% %
Dream Marine Ship Spare Parts Trading in electrical 34 34
Trading LLC? components and spare parts
(Dubai, UAE) of ships and boats

#  Audited by BLS Lad Chartered Accountants LLC
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11 Investment in joint venture (cont’d)

c)

d)

The following information relates to the joint venture at the end of the financial year (cont’d):

In accordance with the shareholders’ agreement between the Company and other joint venturers
of DMS, the Company is entitled to 70% of the net profit of DMS. However, the Company’s
equity interest held in DMS is 34%.

The Company has joint control over this investee as under the contractual arrangement,
unanimous consent is required from all parties to the agreements for all relevant activities.

Management considered that the joint arrangement is structured as a limited company and
provides the Company and the parties to the agreement with rights to the net assets of the limited
company under the arrangement. Accordingly, this arrangement is classified as a joint venture.

The joint venture is-accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

Summarised financial information for material joint venture (not adjusted for the Group’s share
of those amounts) and a reconciliation to the carrying amounts of the investments in the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

DMS

2024 2023

$°000 $°000
Income Statement items:
Revenue 4,263 3,784
Profit after tax 1,224 620
Other comprehensive income 58 (104)
Total comprehensive income 1,282 516
Dividends received from joint venture 381 378
The above profit for the financial year includes the following:
Depreciation and amortisation 18 32
Statement of financial position items:
Non-current assets 123 123
Current assets 5,087 4,449
Current liabilities (1,291) (1,688)
Net assets 3,919 2,884
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:
Cash and cash equivalents 374 471
Inventories 2,558 2,433
Trade receivables 1,840 1,184
Other receivables 315 662
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11 Investment in joint venture (cont’d)

e) Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the
interest in joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

DMS
2024 2023
$°000 $°000
Net assets of the joint venture 3,919 2,884
Group’s share of net assets based on proportion of
ownership interest 2,535 2,019
Equity loan to a joint venture 865 865
Carrying amount of investment 3,400 2,884
12 Investment in associated companies
a) Investment in associated companies are summarised below:
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Carrying amount
GL Lighting Holding Pte Ltd (“GLH”)

and its subsidiaries (“GLH Group™) - - = -
BOS Marine Offshore Engineering

Corporation (“BOSMEC”) 20 - - =

20 = = -

The carrying amount of investment in GLH Group is stated net of accumulated impairment
losses as follows:

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Accumulated impairment losses:
At beginning of financial year/
at end of financial year 9,663 9,663 14,748 14,748

41



BH Global Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries

12 Xnvestment in associated companies (cont’d)

b) The following information relates to the associated companies:

Name of associates
(Country of incorporation)

GL Lighting Holding Pte
Ltd (“GLH”)*
(Singapore)

BOS Marine Offshore
Engineering Corporation
(“BOSMEC”)***

(Japan)

Subsidiaries held by GLH

General Luminaire (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd (“SGL”)**
(People’s Republic of China)

General Luminaire (Kunshan)
Co., Ltd (“KGL”)**
(People’s Republic of China)

Arco Illumination Pte Ltd*
(Singapore)

General Luminaire Co., Ltd**
(Taiwan)

Subsidiary held by KGL

Kunshan Yonglong
Precision Optical Industrial
Co., Ltd ***

(People’s Republic of China)

Principal activities

Investment holding

Provision of engineering,
procurement and designing

services, licensing of patents and
construction works to marine and

offshore industry

Research and development,

manufacturing and selling LED

lighting modules and fixtures

Design, manufacturing and trading
LED lighting modules and fixtures

Wholesale of lighting related
products and fixtures

Trading business of LED lighting

modules and fixtures

Trading of LED lighting modules

and fixtures

*  Audited by Baker Tilly TFW LLP

**  Audited by independent overseas member firms of Baker Tilly International
*** Not required to be audited

Group’s effective
equity interest held

2024

%

43

35

43

43

43

43

43

2023

%

43

35

43

43

43

43

43

All of the above associated companies are accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.

The associated companies in the People’s Republic of China are subject to local exchange
control regulations. These regulations place restrictions on the amount of currency that can be

remitted out of the country.
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12 Investment in associated companies (cont’d)

d) Summarised financial information for GLH Group and BOSMEC based on its financial
statements (not adjusted for the Group’s share of those amounts) and a reconciliation to the
carrying amounts of the investments in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

GLH Group BOSMEC

2024 2023 2024 2023

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Income Statement items:
Revenue 12,920 16,883 9,008 8,218
(Loss)/profit after tax (691) 323 766 201
Other comprehensive loss 67) (296) - -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income (758) 27 766 201
Statement of financial position items:
Non-current assets 12,060 12,660 107 96
Current assets 6,365 6,362 2,182 2,331
Non-current liabilities (2,908) (2,926) (640) (991)
Current liabilities (17,402) (17,370) (1,355) (1,939)
Net (liabilities)/assets (1,885) (1,274) 294 (503)
Group’s share on net assets based on

proportion of ownership interest - - 20 =

Goodwill on acquisition 9,663 9,663 - -
Less: accumulated impairment losses (9,663) (9,663) - -
Carrying amount of investment - — 20 -

During the financial year, the Group did not share the profit of BOSMEC of $248,000
(2023: $70,000) because it has unrecognised cumulative losses for this associate, and the Group
has no obligation regarding these losses. The Group will recognise its share of profits only after
the recognised share of profits equals the share of losses that were not previously recognised.
As of 31 December 2024, the cumulative losses not shared by the Group were $Nil
(2023: $248,000).

13 Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current

tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority.
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13 Deferred tax (cont’d)

The movements in the deferred tax account are as follows:

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
At 1 January 1,052 782 213 246
Tax credited to profit or loss (Note 5) 118 274 18 (33)
Exchange difference 4)) @ = =
At 31 December 1,169 1,052 231 213
Presented on the statements of financial position:
Non-current
Deferred tax assets 1,478 1,361 231 213
Deferred tax liabilities (309) (309) =~ -

1,169 1,052 231 213

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised by the Group and the
movements thereon, during the financial year.

Undistributed
profits
Recognition from
of joint
tax losses ventures Others Total
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Group
2024
At 1 January 2024 1,382 (218) (112) 1,052
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 118 - - 118
Exchange difference (22) - 21 )]
At 31 December 2024 1,478 (218) 91) 1,169
2023
At 1 January 2023 1,077 (218) a7 782
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 309 - (35 274
Exchange difference @) - - @
At 31 December 2023 1,382 (218) (112) 1,052
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13 Deferred tax (cont’d)

Group

2024 2023

$°000 $°000
Unrecognised deductible temporary differences:
Unutilised tax losses 20,511 20,949
Accelerated tax depreciation 28 13
Other deductible temporary differences 701 126

21,240 21,088

Deferred tax assets of $3,611,000 (2023: $3,585,000) have not been recognised in respect of the
above deductible temporary differences as future profit streams are uncertain. Unutilised tax losses
do not have any expiry dates subject to the conditions imposed by law.

14 Intangible assets

Main-
Acquired tenance Development
Goodwill technology  contracts costs Total
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Group
Cost
At 1 January 2023 4,833 2,920 141 5,604 13,498
Additions = - - 1,994 1,994
Written off - - - an 17
At 31 December 2023 4,833 2,920 141 7,581 15,475
Additions - - - 1,413 1,413
Written off - - - (105) (105)
At 31 December 2024 4,833 2,920 141 8,889 16,783
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2023 - 438 117 2,271 2,826
Charge for the year - — - 567 567
At 31 December 2023 - 438 117 2,838 3,393
Charge for the year - - - 564 564
At 31 December 2024 ) - 438 117 3,402 3,957
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2023 4,548 2,482 24 107 7,161
Written off - - - - -
At 31 January and

31 December 2024 4,548 2,482 24 107 7,161
Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2024 285 — - 5,380 5,665
At 31 December 2023 285 - - 4,636 4,921
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14 Intangible assets (cont’d)

15

Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the cash generating units (“CGUs”)
that are expected to benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill is
allocated as follows:

Group

2024 2023

$°000 $°000
Security segment:
Athena Dynamics Pte Ltd (“ADPL”) 185 185
Integration Engineering segment:
Sea Forrest Engineering Pte Ltd (“SFE”) 100 100

285 285

Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculation

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value-in-use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those regarding the discount rates and terminal
value growth rate. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates
are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
performances and expected developments in the market.

The Group’s value-in-use calculations used cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. These key inputs and
assumptions applied are as follows:

ADPL SFE
2024
Terminal value growth rate 1.0% 1.5%
Pre-tax discount rate 14.5% 12.1%
2023
Terminal value growth rate 1.0% 1.5%
Pre-tax discount rate 14.5% 12.1%

Management has considered that a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions will not result
in any impairment charge to be recorded.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Group
2024 2023
$°000 $7000

Quoted equity shares in Singapore 4 2
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16 Loan to an associated company

The loan bears variable interest rate ranging from 5.18% to 5.69% (2023: 7.80% to 8.06%) per
annum, unsecured and repayable on demand. The Group has undertaken not to demand repayment
of this loan within the next 12 months from the reporting date.

Movement in loan to an associated company is as follows:

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Gross amount 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
Share of results of associated company:
Accumulated share of the associate’s loss (539) (242) - -
Accumulated share of other
comprehensive loss (270) (241) - -
Presented on the statements of
financial position 3,191 3,517 4,000 4,000

In measuring expected credit losses of loan to and amount due from an associated company
(Note 20), the Group uses cash flow forecasts from the associated company over the period the
Group expects to recover the cash flows. The cash flow forecasts involve estimates in the
forecasting and projection of sales and operating cash flows for the subsequent years. The key
assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts were:

Revenue growth rates (2025 to 2029): average annual growth rate of 18.0% (2023: 17.0%);
Revenue growth rate beyond 2029: 1% (2023: 1%); and
Discount rate: 9.1% (2023: 10.1%)

Based on the cash flow forecasts, management concluded no ECL allowance is required.

The most significant assumptions used in the cashflow forecasts is the discount rate. The gross
amount of the loan to an associated company may be impaired if the discount rate is 0.8% higher,
with all other assumptions being constant.

17 Inventories

Group
2024 2023
$°000 $°000
Raw material 3,780 4,094
Work in progress 789 491
Finished goods 28,690 26,158
33,259 30,743

Raw materials, consumables and changes in finished goods and work in progress included as cost
of sales amounted to $35,360,000 (2023: $33,616,000).

The Group recognised a write down of $1,654,000 (2023: $1,511,000) due to slow-moving
inventories. The write down was included in selling and distribution expenses.
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Contract assets and contract liabilities

The Group receives payments from customers based on a billing schedule as established in contracts.
Contract assets relate to the Group’s rights to consideration for work completed but not billed at the
reporting date. Contract liabilities relate to advance consideration received from customers, billings
in excess of revenue recognised to-date and deferred revenue. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue as (or when) the Group satisfies the performance obligations under its contracts.

The following table provides information about contract assets and contract liabilities, including
trade receivables from contracts with customers:

Group
2024 2023 1.1.2023
$°000 $°000 $°000
Trade receivables (Note 19) 12,392 16,258 14,404
Contract assets 2,177 1,297 1,885
Contract liabilities 1,886 4,011 3,045

Contract assets increased as the Group provided more services ahead of the agreed payment
schedules. Contract liabilities decreased due to decrease in advance payments from customers and
decrease in deferred revenue.

Trade receivables

Group
2024 2023
$°000 $°000
Trade receivables 12,492 16,366
Less: allowance for impairment ' (100) (108)
12,392 16,258
Movement in allowance for impairment of trade receivables is as follows:
Group
2024 2023
$°000 $°000
At 1 January 108 2,787
Reversal during the financial year (Note 6) 8 (56)
Allowance written off during the financial year - (2,623)
At 31 December 100 108

Included in trade receivables are amounts of $99,000 (2023: $166,000) and $362,000 (2023:
$463,000) due from an associated company and a joint venture.
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20 Other receivables

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

$°000 $7000 $°000 $°000

Amount due from an associated company 2,376 2,009 2,192 1,844
Sundry deposits 172 274 — -
Prepayments 449 490 31 49
Amounts due from a related party 1,177 660 - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 3,468 3,112
Advance payment to suppliers 452 997 = -
Sundry receivables 29 134 - -
GST receivable 313 34 - —
4,968 4,598 5,691 5,005

Less: allowance for impairment

- subsidiaries - — (2,745) -
4,968 4,598 2,946 5,005

Movements in allowance for impairment are as follows:

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
At 1 January - 10 - 1,639
Allowance made during the financial year - - 2,745 -
- Allowance written off during the
financial year - (10) - (1,639)
At 31 December - - 2,745 -

The amounts due from an associated company is non-trade in nature, interest-free, unsecured, and
repayable on demand.

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Company

2024 2023

$°000 $°000
Interest-free advances 723 736
Loans at variable interest rates 2,745 2,376
3,468 3,112
Less: allowance for impairment (2,745) -
723 3,112

The amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade in nature, unsecured and repayable on demand.
Loans to subsidiaries are at interest rates ranging from 4.68% to 5.69% (2023: 4.00% to 4.99%) per
annum based on the average cost of funds incurred by the Group. The amount of $2,745,000 was
fully impaired during the financial year based on the recoverability assessment performed by
management.

The amount due from a related party are non-trade in nature, unsecured and repayable on demand.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
$°000 $7000 $°000 $°000
Cash at bank and on hand 5,301 5,305 68 325

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise the following at the end of the reporting period:

Group
2024 2023
$°000 $°000
Cash and short-term deposits 5,301 5,305
Cash restricted in use - (200)
Cash and cash equivalents 5,301 5,105
Borrowings
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Term loan (secured) - 267 - 267
Term loans (unsecured) 1,526 2,687 - -
Working capital loans (secured) 10,554 5,000 - =
Total borrowings 12,080 7,954 - 267
Presented on the statements of financial position:
Non-current 474 1,577 - =
Current 11,606 6,377 - 267
12,080 7,954 - 267

The secured term loan is pledged by legal mortgage of the Group’s leasehold property and
extension, addition and alteration works (Note 9), corporate guarantee from its associated
companies, GL Lighting Holding Pte. Ltd. and Arco Illumination Pte. Ltd., fixed charge over the
shares of GL Lighting Holding Pte. Ltd. and debenture over Arco Illumination Pte. Ltd. The secured
term loan had been fully repaid as at 31 December 2024. Accordingly, the pledge and mortgage had
been released.

The unsecured term loans are covered by a corporate guarantee from the Company.
The working capital loans are secured by legal mortgage of the Group’s leasehold property and

extension, addition and alteration works (Note 9) and covered by a corporate guarantee from the
Company.
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22 Borrowings (cont’d)

Interest rates during the financial year were as follows:

Term loan (secured) - Variable rates ranging from 6.79% to 6.85% (2023: 6.59% to 7.06%)
per annum.

Term loans (unsecured) - Fixed rate of 2.5% (2023: 2.5%) per annum.

Working capital loans - Variable rates ranging from 4.22% to 5.37% (2023: 4.87% to 5.66%)
per annum.

Following the global transition of benchmark interest rates to alternative risk-free rates, the Group’s
risk exposure that is directly affected by the IBOR reform predominantly comprises its variable rate
borrowings that are link to Singapore Interbank Offer Rate (“SIBOR”). During the financial year,
all the Group’s variable rate borrowings affected by the IBOR reform have been fully transitioned
to the alternative benchmark interest rate using the Singapore Overnight Rate Average (“SORA”).
The Group applied the transition provisions under SFRS(I) 9 and changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows are reflected by adjusting their effective interest rate. No
immediate gain or loss is recognised. The transition from SIBOR to SORA had no effect on the
Group’s financial statements for the current financial year.

The secured term loan and working capital loans are floating rate instruments that are repriced to
market interest rates on or near the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the fair values of these
floating rate borrowings approximate their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. This
fair value measurement for disclosures purposes is categorised in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair values of the unsecured term loans at the end of the reporting period approximate its
carrying value as there are no significant changes in the market lending interest rates available to
the Group at the end of the reporting period.

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:

Amount due
to ultimate

Lease holding
Borrowings liabilities company Total
(Note 23) (Note 24)
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Balance at 1 January 2024 7,954 8,031 272 16,257
Changes from financing cash flows:
- Repayment (1,428) 441 - (1,869)
- Net drawdown of short term borrowings 5,554 - - 5,554
- Interest paid (424) (355) - (779)
Non-cash changes:
- Interest expense 424 355 - 779
- New lease - 653 - 653
- Lease termination - (146) - (146)
- Currency translation differences - 2) - (2)
- Others - @) (3) (10)
Balance at 31 December 2024 12,080 8,088 269 20,437
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Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities (cont’d):

Balance at 1 January 2023

Changes from financing cash flows:

- Drawdown

- Repayment

- Net repayment of short term borrowings
- Interest paid

Non-cash changes:

- Interest expense

- New lease

- Currency translation differences
- Others

Balance at 31 December 2023

Lease liabilities

Current
Non-current

Other payables and accruals

Amount due to ultimate holding
company

Accrued operating expenses

Accrual for directors’ fees

- directors of the Company

- directors of subsidiaries

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other creditors

GST payable

Amount due

to ultimate

Lease holding
Borrowings liabilities company Total
(Note 23) (Note 24)
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
3,289 8,215 295 16,799
3,000 - - 3,000
(1,835) (501) - (2,336)
(1,500) - - (1,500)
(305) (348) = (653)
305 348 = 653
- 325 = 325
- (8 = (8)
- - 23) (23)
7,954 8,031 272 16,257
Group
2024 2023
$°000 $7000
358 374
7,730 7,657
8,088 8,031
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
$°000 $°000 $°000 $7000
269 272 269 272
2,468 2,748 580 838
265 305 265 305
90 100 - -
- - 3,989 6,728
352 693 113 39
— 85 - 48
3,444 4,203 5,216 8,230
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Other payables and accruals (cont’d)

The amounts due to ultimate holding company and subsidiaries are non-trade in nature, unsecured
and repayable on demand, except for an amount of $3,989,000 (2023: $6,647,000) due to a
subsidiary which bears interest rates ranging from 4.68% to 5.69% (2023: 4.50% to 4.99%) per
annum during the financial year, based on the average cost of funds incurred by the Group.

Provisions
Group
2024 2023
$°000 §°000
Provision for warranty 137 83

The provision for warranty relates mainly to goods sold during the year. The Group gives 12 to 24
months warranties on certain products and undertakes to repair or replace items that fail to perform
satisfactorily. A provision is recognised at the end of the reporting period for expected warranty
claims determined based on current sales levels, and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns.

Movement in provision for warranty is as follows:

Group

2024 2023

$°000 $°000
At 1 January 83 31
Additional provision during the year 67 87
Reversal of provision during the financial year A) (35)
Utilisation of provision during the financial year t)) -
At 31 December 137 83

Share capital
Group and Company

2024 2023
Number of  Total share Number of Total share
issued shares capital issued shares capital
000 $°000 000 $°000
Issued and fully paid capital
Balance at 1 January and
31 December 2024 300,000 58,535 300,000 58,535

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the
Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction. The ordinary shares have
no par value.

Dividend
Group
2024 2023
$°000 $°000
Tax-exempt one tier final dividend of 0.7 (2023: 0.5) cents
per share paid in respect of the previous financial year 2,065 1,500
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Dividend (cont’d)

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the Directors of the Company recommended that a tax-
exempt one tier final dividend of 0.5 cents per ordinary share totalling $1.5 million be paid for the
financial year ended 31 December 2024. The dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and hence the proposed dividend has not been accrued as a
liability for the current financial year.

Capital reserves
The capital reserves relate to excess of consideration paid over net assets attributable to

non-controlling interests in subsidiaries acquired.

Contingent liabilities

Company
2024 2023
$°000 $7000
Corporate guarantees for financing facilities granted
by financial institutions to:
- Subsidiaries 23,700 23,700
Corporate guarantees for financing facilities utilised:
- Subsidiaries 12,080 7,687

The Company has issued corporate guarantees to financial institutions for financing facilities
granted to its subsidiaries. These guarantees are financial guarantee contracts as they require the
Company to reimburse the financial institutions if the subsidiaries default on their payments to the
financial institutions or otherwise breach any covenants (Note 31(c)).

Related party transactions

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following
transactions took place between the Group and related parties, who are not members of the Group
during the financial year on terms agreed by the parties concerned:

Group

2024 2023

$°000 $°000
With jointly controlled entities
Dividend income 381 378
Sales of goods 291 972
Purchase of goods 170 69
With associated companies
Sales of goods 1,308 1,955
Management fee income 36 36
Purchase of goods 4,662 4,093
Interest income 319 288
With a related party
Payment on behalf 517 660
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Financial instruments
Categories of financial instruments

Financial instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost 24,638 28,158 6,983 9,281
Financial assets, at fair value

through profit or loss 4 2 - -

Financial liabilities
At amortised cost 28,934 24,895 5,068 8,361

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and commodity price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Group’s overall financial risk
management strategy seeks to minimise adverse effects from the unpredictability of financial
markets on the Group’s financial performance.

The Board of Directors provides written principles for overall financial risk management and
written policies covering the specific areas above. Such written policies are reviewed periodically
by the Board of Directors.

There has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner
in which it manages and measures financial risk. Market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk exposures
are measured using sensitivity analysis indicated below.
a) Market risk
Foreign exchange risk
Foreign currency risk arises on certain sales and purchases transactions that are denominated in
currencies other than the respective functional currencies of entities in the Group. The

currencies that give rise to this risk are primarily United States Dollar.

The Group’s foreign currency exposures are as follows:

USD
$°000
As at 31 December 2024
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,821
Trade and other receivables 1,634
3,455
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (1,560)
Net exposure 1,895
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31 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial risk management (cont’d)
a) Market risk (cont’d)
Foreign exchange risk (cont’d)

The Group’s foreign currency exposures are as follows (cont’d):

USD
$°000
As at 31 December 2023
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 679
Trade and other receivables 4,481
5,160
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (2,908)
Net exposure 2,252

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the USD
exchange rates against the functional currency of the Group’s entities, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit after tax:

Group
Increase/(decrease)
in profit after tax

2024 2023

$°000 $7000
USD/SGD
- strengthened 5% 79 94
- weakened 5% 79) (94)

The Company’s business operations are not exposed to significant foreign currency risk as it
has no significant transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s interest expenses from borrowings arises from term loans and
working capital loans (Note 22). The Group’s and the Company’s interest income arises from
loan to an associated company (Note 16). The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
interest rates arise mainly from the Group’s fixed-rate borrowings amounting to $1,526,000
(2023: $2,687,000).

Sensitivity analysis of the Group’s and Company’s interest rate risk exposures are not presented

as the impact of an increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates are not expected to be
significant.
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31 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial risk management (cont’d)

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations
due to shortage of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group manages the liquidity
risk by maintaining sufficient cash to enable them to meet their normal operating commitments
and having an adequate amount of committed credit facilities (Note 22).

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and Company’s non-derivative
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted

repayment obligations.

Group

2024

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

2023

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Company

2024

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Financial guarantee contracts

(Note 29)

2023

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Financial guarantee contracts

(Note 29)

1 year 1toS More than

or less year 5 years Total

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
8,096 - - 8,096
11,631 479 - 12,110
664 2,567 8,593 11,824
20,391 3,046 8,593 32,030
8,910 - - 8,910
6,699 1,610 - 8,309
702 2,455 8,741 11,898
16,311 4,065 8,741 29,117
5,068 - - 5,068
12,080 - - 12,080
17,148 - - 17,148
8,095 - - 8,095
270 - - 270
7,687 - - 7,687
16,052 = - 16,052
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31 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial risk management (cont’d)
¢) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Group. For trade receivables, the Group adopts the policy of
dealing only with customers of appropriate credit history and obtaining sufficient security
where appropriate to mitigate credit risk.

Credit exposure to an individual counterparty is restricted by credit limits that are approved by
the Group Finance department based on ongoing credit evaluation. The counterparty’s payment
profile and credit exposure are continuously monitored at the entity level by the Group Finance
department.

The Group’s three (2023: three) largest trade receivables amounted to $4,016,000 (2023:
$3,545,000) in total and this represented 32% (2023: 22%) of the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and of which one major corporate customer represented 15% (2023: 9%) of the
carrying amounts of trade receivables.

The Group and the Company have no significant concentration of credit risk except for amount
due from an associated company and amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company as
disclosed in Notes 16 and 20 respectively.

As the Group and Company do not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk is
the carrying amount of each class of financial instruments presented on the statements of
financial position and the amount of $12,080,000 (2023: $7,687,000) relating to corporate
guarantees given by the Company to financial institutions for the subsidiaries’ borrowings.

The following sets out the Group’s internal credit evaluation practices and basis for recognition
and measurement of expected credit losses (“ECL”):

Description of evaluation of financial assets Basis for recognition and measurement
of ECL

Counterparty has a low risk of default and does | 12-month ECL
not have any past due amounts

Debts that are less than 360 days past due or | Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired
where there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. The
presumption of significant increase in credit risk
after 30 days past due is not suitable for
application in the industries that the Group
operates in

Debts that are more than 360 days past due or | Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired
there is evidence of credit impairment

There is evidence indicating that the Group has | Write-off
no reasonable expectation of recovery of
payments such as when the debtor has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings
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31 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial risk management (cont’d)
¢) Credit risk (cont’d)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information, such as future economic and industry outlook, that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the Group considers the following information when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition:

+ Existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

* An actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results/key financial
performance ratios of the debtor;

* Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;

* An actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

The Group also assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk
at the reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if it has an
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally understood definition, or
the financial asset has a low risk of default; the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

*  When there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

* Information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when a

financial asset is more than 360 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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31 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial risk management (cont’d)

c) Credit risk (cont’d)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred such as evidence that the
borrower is in significant financial difficulty, there is a breach of contract such as default or
past due event; there is information that it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or the purchase or origination of a financial
asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Estimation techniques and significant assumptions

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during
the current financial year for recognition and measurement of credit loss allowance.

Movements in credit loss allowance are as follows:

Trade Other
receivables - receivables
2024 2023 2024 2023
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Group
Balance at 1 January 108 2,787 - 10
Loss allowance reversed
Lifetime ECL
- simplified approach (5) 45) - —
- credit impaired 3 an - -
Receivables written off as

uncollectable - (2,623) - (10)
Balance at 31 December 100 108 - -

Amounts
due from
subsidiaries
2024 2023
$°000 $°000

Company
Balance at 1 January — 1,639
Loss allowance measured:
Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 2,745 -
Receivables written off as uncollectable - (1,639)
Balance at 31 December 2,745 -

The credit loss for cash and cash equivalents, loan to associated company and contract assets
are immaterial as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.
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31 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial risk management (cont’d)
c) Credit risk (cont’d)
Trade receivables

The Group determines the ECL of trade receivables by making a full allowance for debtors
regarded as credit-impaired where one or more credit impairment events have occurred and
using a provision matrix for remaining trade receivables.

The contract assets relate to unbilled work-in-progress, which have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same type of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of
the loss rates for the contract assets. Trade receivables and contract assets that shared the same
credit risk characteristics and days past due are grouped together in measuring the expected
credit losses.

Age brackets of ‘not past due’ and ‘past due 0 to 360 days’ were used as it is common for
invoices to be repaid anytime within the credit term up to 360 days past due from invoice date
in the offshore and marine industry. Receivables past due for more than 360 days were deemed
to be credit-impaired. Management does not expect any significant improvement or
deterioration in market conditions in the near future.

The Group estimates the expected credit loss rates for each category of past due status of the
debtors based on historical credit loss experience, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions with consideration of the current
macroeconomic conditions on the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during
the current financial year.

The Group has recognised a loss allowance of 100% against all trade receivables over 360 days
past due because historical experience has indicated that these receivables are generally not
recoverable. A trade receivable is written off when there is information indicating that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery from the debtor.
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31 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial risk management (cont’d)
c) Credit risk (cont’d)
Trade receivables (cont’d)

The Group’s credit risk exposure in relation to trade receivables under SFRS(I) 9 as at
31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are set out in the provision matrix below:

Past due Past due

Not past 0 to 360 360 Credit-
due days days impaired Total

2024
Electrical and

Technical Supply
Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.16% 0.00% 100.0%
Gross receivables

($°000) 178 9,755 - 84 10,017
Loss allowance ($°000) -~ 16 - 84 100
Security
Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Gross receivables

($°000) 663 178 — - 841
Loss allowance ($°000) - - - - -
Integration Engineering
Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Gross receivables

($°000) 107 1,527 - - 1,634
Loss allowance ($°000) - - - - -
Total gross receivables

($°000) 948 11,460 - 84 12,492
Total loss allowance

($°000) - 16 - 84 100
Net carrying amount

($°000) 948 11,444 - - 12,392
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31 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial risk management (cont’d)
¢) Credit risk (cont’d)

Trade receivables (cont’d)

The Group’s credit risk exposure in relation to trade receivables under SFRS(I) 9 as at
31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are set out in the provision matrix below (cont’d):

Past due Past due

Not past 0 to 360 360 Credit-
due days days impaired Total

2023
Electrical and

Technical Supply
Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.18% 0.00%  100.00%
Gross receivables

($°000) 14 11,777 - 87 11,878
Loss allowance ($°000) - 21 - 87 108
Security
Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Gross receivables

($°000) 1,286 227 69 - 1,582
Loss allowance ($°000) - - - - —
Integration Engineering
Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Gross receivables

($°000) 652 1,853 401 - 2,906
Loss allowance ($°000) . - - - -
Total gross receivables

($°000) 1,952 13,857 470 87 16,366
Total loss allowance

($°000) - 21 - 87 108
Net carrying amount

($°000) 1,952 13,836 470 - 16,258
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31 Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

c)

Credit risk (cont’d)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The table below details the credit quality of the Group and Company’s financial assets (other
than trade receivables and contract assets):

Gross Net
Group 12-month or carrying Loss carrying
2024 lifetime ECL amount allowance amount
$°000 $°000 $°000
Cash and cash equivalents N.A. Exposure 5,301 - 5,301
with financial institutions Limited
Loan to an associated company Lifetime ECL 3,191 - 3,191
Due from an associated company  Lifetime ECL 2,376 - 2,376
Other receivables 12-months 1,378 - 1,378
ECL
2023
Cash and cash equivalents N.A. Exposure 5,305 - 5,305
with financial institutions Limited
Loan to an associated company Lifetime ECL 3,517 - 3,517
Due from an associated company  Lifetime ECL 2,009 - 2,009
Other receivables 12-months 1,068 - 1,068
ECL
Company
2024
Due from subsidiaries Lifetime ECL 3,468 (2,745) 723
Cash and cash equivalents N.A. Exposure 68 - 68
with financial institutions Limited
Loan to an associated company Lifetime ECL 4,000 - 4,000
Due from an associated company  Lifetime ECL 2,192 - 2,192

64




BH Global Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries

31 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial risk management (cont’d)
c) Credit risk (cont’d)
Other financial assets at amortised cost (cont’d)

The table below details the credit quality of the Group and Company’s financial assets (other
than trade receivables and contract assets) (cont’d):

Gross Net
Company 12-month or carrying Loss carrying
2023 lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount

$°000 $°000 $°000
Due from subsidiaries Lifetime ECL 3,112 - 3,112
Cash and cash equivalents N.A. Exposure 325 - 325

with financial institutions Limited

Loan to an associated company  Lifetime ECL 4,000 - 4,000
Due from an associated company Lifetime ECL 1,844 - 1,844

Amount due from and loan to an associated company
Amount due from subsidiaries

Impairment loss allowances for the amounts due from and loan to an associated company, and
amount due from subsidiaries are measured using lifetime ECL, as there has been significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition based on the performance and financial position
of the associated company and the subsidiaries.

For the amounts due from and loan to an associated company, refer to Note 16 for management's
impairment assessment. Based on cash flow forecasts, management concluded that no provision
is required.

For the amounts due from subsidiaries, management assessed that, except for OMS Group, the
ECL is not expected to be significant due to the forecasted financial capacity and outlook of the
subsidiaries, and therefore, no ECL provision is required. For amount due from OMS Group,
the full amount of $2,745,000 (Note 20) was fully impaired during the financial year based on
management's recoverability assessment.

Corporate guarantees

The Company has issued corporate guarantees to financial institutions for borrowings of its
subsidiaries. These guarantees are subject to the impairment requirements of SFRS(I) 9. The
directors do not expect credit loss exposure arising from these guarantees in view of the
financial strength of the subsidiaries and that certain borrowings were secured by legal
mortgage of one of its subsidiary’s leasehold properties.
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32 Fair value of assets and liabilities

a)

b)

Fair value hierarchy

The tables below analyse the fair value measurements by the levels in the fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs to the valuation techniques. The different levels are defined as follows:

1) Level 1- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

i) Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

iii)Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Fair value measurements of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

The following table presents the level of fair value hierarchy for each class of assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on the statements of financial position at the end of the
reporting period:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
) $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Group
2024
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets
Financial assets, at fair value
through profit or loss
- quoted equity shares 4 - - 4

2023
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets
Financial assets; at fair value
through profit or loss
- quoted equity shares 2 — - 2

The fair value of the quoted equity shares is based on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period.

Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and those
carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value

The carrying amounts of non-current loan to an associated company and non-current
borrowings approximate their fair values at the end of the reporting period as they are either
floating rate instrument that are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the end of the
reporting period or the market lending rates at the end of the reporting period were not
significantly different from their respective coupon rates of the agreements or market lending
rate at the initial measurement date. The basis of determining fair value disclosure purposes at
the end of the reporting period are disclosed in Note 22.

The above does not include financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amounts are
measured on the amortised cost basis. These current financial assets and liabilities approximate
fair values due to their short-term nature and where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

33 Segment information

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities, generating
revenues and incurring expenses, including those resulting from inter-segment transactions.
Operating segments are reported consistently with the internal reporting framework used by the
Group's chief operating decision maker (“CODM?) to allocate resources and evaluate segment
performance.
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33 Segment information (cont’d)

For management purpose, the Group is organised into business segments, with each segment
representing a strategic business segment that offers different products/services. The Group has four
main business segments, Electrical and Technical Supply, Green LED Lighting, Security and
Integration Engineering Segments.

Electrical and Technical supply segment comprises trading in goods for marine cables, lighting
equipment and accessories. Security segment comprises the business from cybersecurity solutions,
marine surveillance systems and thermal scanners. Integration Engineering segment comprises the
business from engineering services. Green LED Lighting segment comprises business from design
and manufacturing of technological advanced and innovative Green LED solutions.

The following tables present revenue, segment results, assets and liabilities, depreciation, other
significant non-cash items and capital expenditure information for the Group.

Electrical Green
and Technical LED Integration Elimi-
Supply Lighting Security Engineering Corporate nations Total
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $000

2024
Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers 47,070 - 5,786 7,529 — - 60,385
Intersegment sales 928 - 2,164 42 - (3,134) -
Total revenue 47,998 - 7,950 7,571 - (3,134) 60,385
Segment results 10,486 - (2,990) (1,361) (4,198) - 1,937
Share of profit/(loss) from

equity - accounted joint

venture and associates 857 @17) - - = - 580
Profit before tax 2,517
Income tax expense (458)
Profit after tax 2,059
Depreciation and amortisation 1,254 - 375 575 - - 2,204
Interest income 9 - - - 310 - 319
Finance cost 747 — 29 - 3 - 779
Other significant non-cash

items 37D - 476 1,708 - - 1,813
Segment assets 55,142 - 13,040 12,501 6,676 - 87,359
Unallocated assets 1,478
Total assets 88,837
Segment assets includes
Investment in joint ventures

and associates 3,420 - - - - - 3,420
Additions to non-current assets 1,129 - 721 914 - - 2,764
Segment liabilities 24,754 - 2,559 2,594 1,244 - 31,151
Unallocated liabilities 2,171
Total liabilities 33,322
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33 Segment information (cont’d)

Electrical Green
and Technical LED Integration Elimi-
Supply Lighting Security Engineering Corporate nations Total
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

2023
Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers 43,832 - 8,553 6,769 - — 59,154
Intersegment sales 522 = 1,114 88 = (1,724) =
Total revenue 44,354 - 9,667 6,857 — (1,724) 59,154
Segment results 11,146 - (2,227) (2,098) (3,936) — 2,885
Share of profit/(loss) from

equity - accounted joint

venture and associates 615 115 - — - = 730
Profit before tax 3,615
Income tax expense (947)
Profit after tax 2,668
Depreciation and amortisation 1,134 = 487 556 = - 2,177
Interest income 9 = 1 — 278 - 288
Finance cost 585 - 23 - 45 - 653
Other significant

non-cash items (528) e 558 1,494 = - 1,524
Segment assets 52,857 - 15,240 12,220 6,684 —_ 87,001
Unallocated assets 1,361
Total assets 88,362
Segment assets includes
Investment in joint ventures

and associates 2,884 - - — — - 2,884
Additions to non-current

assets 1,132 — 1,190 1,154 - - 3,476
Segment liabilities 19,843 — 3,617 4,591 1,749 - 29,800
Unallocated liabilities 3,156
Total liabilities 32,956
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33 Segment information (cont’d)

Significant non-cash items (other than depreciation and amortisation) consist of the following:

Group
2024 2023
$°000 $°000
Provision for warranty 67 87
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables t)) (56)
Reversal of provision for warranty (5 (35)
Write down of inventories 1,654 1,511
Intangible assets written off 105 17
1,813 1,524

Segment results

CODM monitors the operating results of its operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Income taxes are
managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating segments. Sales between operating
segments are on terms agreed by the Group companies concerned.

Segment assets

The amounts provided to the CODM with respect to total assets are measured in a manner consistent
with that of the financial statements. CODM monitors the assets attributable to each segment for
the purposes of monitoring segment performance and for allocating resources between segments.
All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than tax recoverable and deferred tax asset
which are classified as unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities

The amounts provided to the CODM with respect to total liabilities are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the financial statements. All liabilities are allocated to the reportable
segments based on the operations of the segments other than tax payable and deferred tax liabilities
which are classified as unallocated liabilities.

Geographical information

Revenue and non-current assets information based on the billing location of customers and assets
respectively are as follows:

Revenue Non-current assets

2024 2023 2024 2023

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Singapore 40,242 40,985 22,546 22,282
Japan 7,680 7,280 20 -
Indonesia 2,569 1,213 - —
United States of America 2,062 1,242 - 70
United Arab Emirates 1,767 1,651 3,400 2,884
The Netherlands 1,211 426 - -
Malaysia 1,069 649 - —
Vietnam 626 578 = =
Denmark 444 213 = =
India 288 220 - -
Other countries 2,427 4,697 101 45
60,385 59,154 26,067 25,281
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33

34

35

Segment information (cont’d)
Geographical information (cont’d)
Other countries comprise South Korea, Italy, Australia, Greece, China and others.

Non-current assets information presented above are non-current assets as presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position excluding deferred tax assets, loan to an associated
company and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Information about major customer

Revenue of approximately $4,911,000 (2023: $5,313,000) are derived from one external customer
that contributes 8% (2023: 9%) of the Group revenue and are mainly attributable to the Electrical
and Technical Supply Segment (2023: Electrical and Technical Supply Segment).

Capital management

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholders’ value.
In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividend payment, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, buy back issued shares, obtain
new borrowings or sell assets to reduce borrowings.

The capita] structure of the Group mainly consists of equity and borrowings and the Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from 2023.

Event after the Balance Sheet Date

Winding-up of Omnisense Systems Private Limited (“OMS") and its subsidiary, Omnisense Systems
US4, Inc (“OMS US”), and incorporation of a new subsidiary

On 9 January 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company announced that OMS US has
commenced its dissolution process. OMS US has ceased its operations and has been dormant. The
dissolution is part of the Group’s efforts to rationalise and streamline the Group’s corporate
structure. On 11 February 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company announced that OMS US
has been fully dissolved.

On 24 January 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company announced that OMS had passed a
special resolution to commence voluntary winding-up due to its inability to continue business
operations because of its liabilities. On 14 March 2025, the voluntary winding-up of OMS
proceeded as a creditors’ voluntary winding-up, after discussions with OMS' creditors and
liquidators. Infravision Technology Pte. Ltd. ("ITPL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
participated in a public auction for the sale of OMS' assets conducted by the liquidator on 17 March
2025. The proceeds from the auction (i) will be applied towards paying off the Group's existing
intercompany debts, and, (ii) to ensure the continuation of business operations, the relevant assets
and businesses will be transferred to ITPL with effect from 19 March 2025 through an agreement
executed between [TPL, OMS, and the Company. Concurrently, ITPL's issued and paid-up share
capital will be increased from S$100 to S$1 million, with the consideration partially satisfied in
cash and partially in kind through the sale of the assets and businesses.

On 3 February 2025, the Company has incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary in the Republic of
Singapore, known as Infravision Technology Pte. Ltd. (“ITPL”) and its principal activity is that of
manufacturing and repairing of engineering and scientific instruments. ITPL has an initial issued
and paid-up share capital of S$100 comprising 100 ordinary shares.
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35 Event after the Balance Sheet Date (cont’d)

36

Potential spin-off listing of Sea Forrest Technologies (S) Pte Ltd

On 1 April 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company announced a potential spin-off plan,
whereby Sea Forrest International Ltd (“SFI”), a newly incorporated listing vehicle, is intended to
list with a subsidiary of the Company, Sea Forrest Technologies (S) Pte Ltd (“SFTS”). SFl is not a
subsidiary of the Company and does not carry on any business, it was incorporated as the listing
vehicle for the potential spin-off.

As of the date of this report, the potential spin-off remains subject to various conditions and
uncertainties including the results of due diligence to be carried out on SFI and other preparatory
work to be undertaken, requisite approvals from the relevant regulatory authorities being obtained
and the outcome of the review of the confidential filing, and the then-prevailing market conditions.
Accordingly, there is no assurance that the potential spin-off will materialise in due course or at all.

Authorisation of financial statements
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statements of financial position and

statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 were
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 8 April 2025.
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